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Minerva is committed
to delivering prime
assets through

its developments

and pipeline, creating
value for all of

its shareholders.
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All three developments, located in the City and West End
of London, are of the highest quality and are being delivered
into an ervroniment of restncted competitive supply

We focus on

Prime locations in London

Meeting the needs of constramned supply

Highest qualty standards

Sustanabilty

Our pipeline

1415

Assembly of a development pipeline will provide the Group
with Inherent opportunities to develop, ether solely or injoint
venture with others

We focus on:

High-end residential

Mixed-use

Central London offices

Building
shareholder value

16-31

The results for the year have benefited from an improverment
in the valuation of the Group’s real estate portfolio

Property valuation up 174%

EPRA NAV up 180%




Developments

graphic removed

The Walbrook Building London EC4

Prestigious
City location

The Walbrook Building stands in the heart of the
City of Londen, adiacent to the Mansion House and within
a stone’s throw of the Bank of England  Transport Inks

are excellent with major tube lines adjacent to the bulding
immediately to the north and south

map removed

Curent market value! Uplift n value?

£2240.8m 38.6%

AL30 June 2010 “After agjusting for expendture in theyear




Meeting the supply
needs of the City

“We gently curved
and sculpted the
form of the building to
respond to this unique
historic location.”

Grant Brooker, Senior Partner, Foster and Partners

graphic removed

graph removed

There 1sanincreasing shortage of large, Grade A office
buldings with the consequence that tenants’ choice 1s
becoming imited Generally speaking, new speculative
development is very imited and this will resutt in a shortage of
new office space inthe short tomedium term City occupiers
tend to prefer larger floor-plates for therr efficiency, both in terms
of space utiisation and for employee interaction The Walbrook
Building has floors from 35,000t 50,000 5 ft and they offer
efiicient floor-plates, generally with only six intemal colurnns
and floor to celling high fenestration
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graphic removed

Setting a new
benchmark for quality

Designed by Foster and Partrners, The Walbrook Buillding
offers large open plan floor plates with a minimum number
of columns, whilst prowviding high quality accommodation

graphic removed

Quality m every way

The strikng design of the entrance hall
matches the contemgorary extenor
ofthe buidng

Exceeds
sustainability targets

With the highest BREEAM rating of ‘Excellent’
The Walbrocok Bullding offers tenants efficient, sustainable
and adaptable accommodation

tmproving enargy efficency

The extenor of The Walbrock Bulding s
enveloped by aerofol shaped biades which
provide solar shading to keep the bulkding
ooal, thus mprosang energy efficiency

graphic removed




“The project achieves
the highest
environmental BREEAM
rating, which is an
important consideration
for potential occupiers.”

Mark Shm, Executive Director, CBRE

graphic removed




Developments

graphic removed

The St Botolph Building London EC3

A new landmark for
the East City of London

This stnkeng new buiding 1s located on the eastem side

of the City of London  The completed development stands
on ansland site and provides some 560,000 sq it of high
qualtty Grade A office and retall accommodation

Current market value! Upirt In value?

52245./m 26.0%

'Ar 30 June 2010 ?Atter adjustng for expencditure nthe year

Meeting the needs
of modern occupiers

chart removed

map removed

Meeting the needs for efficient accommodation, The St Botolph
Bulding provides substantial rectangular floor-plates around &
large central atnum prowviding genuine flexbility in space planning
with extensive runs of clear well It space This configuration

is well matched to the demands of both cellular and open plan
occupiers, gving the bulding wide tenant appeal




“The TWIN® lift system
provides efficient
vertical transport
within the building
using less space
than a conventional

lifting system.”

Adam Scott, Dmsional Director, Roger Preston & Partners

graphic removed
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Quality design
by leading architects

The St Betolph Bulding has been designed by leading

Bntish architects Gnmshaw, with an industnal design hentage
The entrance hall and atnum spaces provide an Impressive
and contemporary environment

Incorporating highly
efficient interiors

The Iifing technology in the bullding provides highty efficient
circulation, whilst minimising space take

State-of-the-art efficiency

The TWIN® it systerm ncorporates

16 Ift cars operating N exght open

‘scanc’ shafts The computer coordnated
mavement of the cars will be wishia to al
users of tha building and mprove acoess
around the buiding

graphc removed

Flexible and functional

The batanced tayout of four permeter
cores creates flaxbie office space sutable
for a broad range of occupiers ncluding
dealng operations on the lowest floors

graphic removed

Altention to detail
Grrishaw has a reputation for attertion
togetal and qualty atinbutes that are
reflected n every part of the buiding,

the wndows and facade which
features Nnovatve solar shading

graphic removed

graphic removed




"Our aim was to create

a highly adaptable and
efficient commercial
building with a pleasant

working environment.”

Sir Nicholas Gnmshaw, Founder, Gnmshaw Architects

graphic remaoved
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The Lancasters London W2

Unrivalled _
aspirational location

Centrally located on the northern side of Hyde Park close to
Kensington Gardens, Mayfarr, Kmghtsbndge and Kensington
and Chelsea Five minutes north is Paddington station with
its excellent rail inks and express access to Heathrow Aiport

Current market value' Uplift in value?

£320.1m +19.3%

AL30 June 2010 ?After adjustng for expenditura in the year

map removed




graphic removed

Satisfyingdemand  “Distinguished

for ultra-prime residences for the most
ooy e e e - dliscerning buyers.”
of Central London Ed Lewns, London residential development Director, Sawvills




Developments

‘“We take inspiration
from the
architecture of the
building and use
this as our starting
point for a bespoke
interior scheme.”

Kamini Ezralow, Managng Director, Intarya

graphic removed
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graphic removed
The very finest in
contemporary living
The Lancasters was onginally an elegant terrace of 15 h d
magnificent, stucco-fronted Grade Il listed houses dating graphic remove
from the mid-19th century Each of the 77 new homes
has been designed around the grandeur of the onginal
architecture and intenor features of the building
Contemporary kitchens
The kitchensare fitted
with the tatest applances
Classic with
contemporary
The intenor architecture ncludes plaster meouldings and tmber
paneling, paying homage to the onginal features, juxtaposed
with the sleek kitchens and spa-nspired bathrooms to create
a seamless blend of contemporary and tradtional graphicremoved

Classic with contemporary

The mouldings taken from onginal cormices
recovered from the site have been used as
atarmpiate to decorate plars and there are

faature fireplaces 1 all recaption rooms
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Our pipeline
The Group has a pipeline - - -
of future mixed-use l;"gh eng residential
development opportunities sadmore on page
at the Ram Brewery and Odeon Kensington, London Wg
Croydon Estate and Acqured towards the ond of 2005the propaty isheld
H H H [8] ashort-tem lease o 20N uinemas IcN IS
a hlgh-en_d reSIdhentlaI SUb(ljeCtttO] a develoament R]rea(};clafu;e It lslocalt_?d };nsat pnrtne
resicental area on e south side of AensiNgion Hi reet,
Oppor‘tunlty at t e Just south of Holland Park J 9

Odeon Kensington.

Planning consent was granted in Novernber 2008, for an
afl-private residential scherme of around 100,000 sq ft

with 35 apartments, five town houses, a basement car park,
multi-screen pubiic cinema and ofi-site affordable housing

Mixed-use

Read more on page 24 graphic remaoved

Ram Brewery, London SW18
The site consists of approximately eght acres in the centre
of Wandsworth, close to the Town Hall

Progress Is being made on a revised planning application
for the Bam Brewery site which 1s expected to be submitted
later nthis financial year This follows the decision by the
Secretary of State for Communrties and Local Government
In June not to grant planning permission for the main site,
despite the apphcation beng approved by Wandsworth
Council and the Greater London Authonty

Our proposals, In relation to the Buckhold Road site, are due
10 go back to the Secretary of State this autumn incorporating
arevised Section 106 agreement

Central London

Read more on page 21

With our recent expertise and expenence In this arena,

the Group 1s well positioned to consider new development
opportunities in Central London, etther solely or in joint
venture with others




graphic removed

graphic removed
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graphic removed

graphic removed

graphic removed

Croydon Estate, London Borough of Croydon
Minerva, as one of the key strategic stakeholders in the central
Croydon area, 1s playing a major part in shaping the future
development plan This will, amongst other things, increase
commercial and residential accommeodation in order to meet
the needs of Croydon, which has been identified and pnontised
as the "key’ economic hub for growth in South London

Dunng the year, the Group has concentrated efforts on
generating ncome inthe short and medium term from its
existing properties The focus onthe leasing of the vacant shop
units has been productive and attention 1s now being focused
on the office accommodation

graphic removed
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“We continue to remain fully
focused on achieving a
number of operational and
development milestones such
that the Group is now well
placed to deliver value into the
cycle from its portfolio of first
rate London based assets.”

graphc removed




The past financial year has been an eventful one for the Group
it represented a penod of transition for your Company dunng
amost testing time for the rea! estate market Inthe face of
extreme challenges brought on by the credit crunch, we have
successfully achieved a number of important milestones
These include the comprehensive refinancing of the Group’s
loan facities, the sale of Wigmore Street at a significant
premium, reaching pre-lethings of approximately 45 per cent of
the total coffice space at The St Botolph Buillding, and achweving
pre-sales now totalling approximately £230 million at Lancaster
Gate, representing Just over half of the total area of the scheme

The Board has also defended the Group from a takeover
attempt by KiFin Limited, Minerva’s largest shareholder,

at a pnce that the Board beleved significantly undervalued
Minerva More recently, we were forced to respond to a senes
of disclosure and control seeking resolutions to be voted on
by shareholders at a General Meeting requisitioned by KiFin
At the General Meeting on 8 September 2010, shares
representing over 83 per cent of the Company's 1ssued share
capital were voted All the resolutions were defeated asthe
overwhelming majonty of votes cast by ndependent voting
shareholders (excluding KiFin and its associates) were against
the resclutions

In responding to KiFin's actions, we have afways sought to
act in the best interests of shareholders as a whole

Despite these challenges, we continue to remain fully focused
on achieving a nurmber of operational and development
milestones such that the Group 1s now well placed to deliver
value into the cycle from its portfolio of first rate London
based assets

“The Board is focused
on, and remains fully
committed to, delivering
the full value potential
of the Group’s portfolio
for all shareholders.”
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Operational progress

In Septemiber 2009, | was pleased to report that we had
successfully concluded therefinancing and restructunng of
the Group's loan faciliies Among other benefits, thus provides
the Group with no scheduled matunties in the current financial
year and a good financial platform from which to progress
our developments

With a strengthened funding platform in place, construction
of our City of London properties continued on programme
We achieved practical completion on The Walbrook Building
in February this year and on The St Botolph Bulding earlier
this month

in December 2009, | was pleased to report that Minerva
achieved an important leasing milestone with respect

to The St Botolph Bulding with the agreement to pre-let
145,000 sq ft of the buldingto Intemational taw firm

Clyde & Co This was concluded on competitve terms
Approximately 45 per cent of the office space in this building
has now been let or pre-let

These two pnme office developments are located na City

of Lordon market where existing competing supply for similar
efficient large floor plate buldings 1s extremely imited and
where future supply has been severely curtatled by the scarcity
of development funding Discussions continue with a number
of prospective tenants for the remaining space

Construction at Lancaster Gate 1s progressing well We formally
launched this uttra-pnme development, INcorporating a stunning
5,300 sq ft show apartment, n June and pre-sales have been
most encouraging By 30 June 2010 we had exchanged
contracts for pre-sales totaling circa £230 milion, representing
52 per cent of the total saleablearea, at pnce levels substantally
ahead of our onginal expectations Buyer interest in this high
qualty scheme is truly International and we remain confident
that the sales and pnaing success achieved to date wall continue
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On 30 June this year, the Secretary of State turned down our
planning applcation for the Bam Brewery site in Wandsworth,
pnmanly over concermns around the Impact of the proposed talt
buildings at the northem end of the site and their proximity to
the nearby gasholder The regeneration and change of use
benefits were otherwise applauded in both his and the Planning
Inspector's reports This decision was unexpected and a
disappointment in the lIight of support for the proposed scheme
from both Wandsworth Council and the Mayor of London
However, the guidance now given, together with the further
consuftation with key stakeholders, will assist in our new
application This development will be a significant part of the
regeneration of Wandsworth Town Centre and we are confident
that consent for ts redevelopment will be forthcoming in

due course

in December 2009, follkning an extensive and competitive sale
process, Minenva sold its property located at Wigmore Street,
London W1 for £40 75 millon The sale of this property, which
was a non-core asset, provided a 20 per cent premium to the
book value as at 30 June 2009

In the same month, we acquired Northacre plc's minonty
interest in our Odeon Kensington scheme, ensunng that the
full profits from this development will accrue for the benefit of
Minerva and its shareholders Dunng the last financial year,

we have continued to mornitor the market and review the
options for maximising returns from this property Whilsta
disposal rermains an option, in the light of the shortage of supply
of new pnme residential accommodation in Central London,
our preferred route 15 10 develop the site, possibly in some form
of jont venture However, this will not happen until appropnate
funding 1s secured and our other developments have been
further de-nsked

Consultations continue regarding the future of the Croydon
Estate as part of a wider master plan promoted by the local
authonty We have been successfulin generating short-term
income from the estate, through the leasing of retall units
onthesite Additionally, we are explonng a number of
possible redevelopment options with respect to parcels

of our ownership

Financial results

Whilst uncertainty remains as to the pace and extent of
economic recovery and the full impact of global governmental
spending cuts have yet to be seen, the pnme real estate market
In London has clearly demonstrated ts inherent defensive
strengths over this financial year The mprovement in the pnme
London market, coupled with the decisve actions taken by the
Group, has had a significant effect on the value of the Group's
property portfolo, which 1s now valued at £1,124 9 midion

(30 June 2009 £807 O milion), anincrease of 17 4 per cent

in the yeay, after adjusting for expendture and disposals

With the strengthened funding platform we now have in place,
the Group 1s geared to benefit from arecovenng London
property market as clearly shown by our results for the year,
where a 17 4 per cent net increase inthe portfolio value

has delivered anincrease n diluted EPRA NAV per share

of 180 per cent

Abortive offer for the Company and General Meetings

On 17 November 2009 KifFin, which held 29 5 per cent

of the issued shares of Minerva, made an unsolicited offer

to acquire the remaining share capital of the Company at a
prce of 50 pence per share The Board of Minerva considered
that this offer significantly undervalued the Company and
recommended that shareholders should not accept t

The offer lapsed on 8 January 2010 with acceptances
representing ust O 08 per cent of the ssued share capital

of Minerva

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

4 December 2009, dunng the time of ts bid, KiFin voted
against a number of the resolutions proposed, including my
own reappointment KiFin was able to defeat those resolutions
due to the size of its shareholding andto an insufficient turn

out of ndependent voting shareholders [tis worth noting that,
excluding KiFin, over 99 per cent of shareholders that voted
did so in favour of the resolutions  Following the Annual General
Meeting, the Board independently resolved to reappont me as
Chauman for the duration of the bid penod 1t took this decision
on the basis that Minerva should not be without an independent
Chairman whilst the subject of an unsolicited offer from its mayor
shareholder and concluded that | would properly represent the
interests of all shareholders




“Our property portfolio
comprises well-located,
high-quality office and
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residential developments.”

This deciston was also taken with reference to the level of
support from independent shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting Once the bid penod had lapsed, a General Meeting
was held on 5 March 2010 to allow shareholders the
opportunity to vote onmy reappointment as

a Director of the Company My reappointment was approved
by a majortty of votes cast, although KiFin voted against

the resolution

Foliowing a formal request from KiFin on 22 July 2010,
afurther General Mesting was heid on 8 September 2010
nwhich a seres of disclosure and control seeking resolutions
proposed by KIFin were put to the shareholders The Board
strongly acvised shareholders to vote against these resolutions
and | am pleased to report that for all the resolutions put

tothe vote at that General Meeting over 99 per cent of votes
cast by independent sharehalders (excluding KiFin and

ts associates) were aganst the resolutions, which were
consequently defeated

Whilst your Board regrets the considerable time expended
and financial costs of dealing with these matters, the Board's
pnmary objectve has been to act in the interest of all
shareholders This wall remain its pnormty

The Board

On a separate matter of Board representation, in the 2009
Annual Report and Accounts we stated that we would look to

supptement the non-executive membership of the Board when

appropnate Following the financial restructunng of the Group’s
loans and the lapse of KIFin's offer, the Board took steps to
make such appointments | am pleased to have welcomed
Martin Pexton and Danigl Kitchen to the Board on 5 March
and 4 May 2010 respectively Therr extensive expenence and
skalls will be a great benefit to the Company and, with these
appointments, the Board 1s well balanced to guide the Group's
further progress

= o

Outiook

Qur property portfolio compnses well-located, high-quality
office and residential developments which are beng delvered
into supply constrained markets in the City and West End

of London The significant uplft in the value of our property
portfolio reflects improving market condmiens in Londen

and the benefits of a restructured funding platform Given the
pnme nature of our assets we are well-posttioned to deliver
and benefit from further improverments in the London
property market

The Board is focused on, and remains fully committed to,
delvenng the full value potential of the Group's portfolio for
all shareholders

et
Oliver Whitehead
Chamman

21 September 2010
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27 Fnancing

29 Other performance

wdicators

30 Key nsks.
and uncertantes

Our overall objective is to
deliver attractive, long-term
retums to shareholders through
investment, development,
sale and management of UK
real estate.

graphic removed

graphic removed

graphic removed

“With its restructured
funding platform,
Minervais well placed
to benefit from further
improvements in
the real estate market.”

Salmaan Hasan
Chief Executive

“The Company has
demonstrated a strong
financial performance
in the year.”

lvan Ezekiel
Finance Director

“We are very proud
to have delivered two
striking new buildings
in the Cityin 2010.”

Tim Garnham

Group Development Director



Strategy

Overview

Minerva has successfully navigated through a very difficutt
couple of years for the property and financial markets

and has achieved, dunng the financial year under review,
a restructunng and refinancing of the Group's bank loan
faciities This included, nter alia

- the deferral of loan covenants,

- the extension of loans, and

- the remova! and/or reduction of recourse to the assets
of the wider Group

This refinancing and restructunng, completed towards the
beginning of the financial year, was essential and has enabled
the Group to ensure the complebon of the developments
under construction, whilst also mantaining financial stability
This financial leverage, which worked against the Group whilst
the real estate market was detenorating, has contnbuted
beneficially to the Group's improved financial performance

in the year under review

The developments which are either under construction
or have recently been completed are

— The Walbrook Building — City of London offices,
- The St Botolph Bulding — City of London offices, and
- Lancaster Gate — ultra-pnme residential

Allthree developments, located in the City and West End
of London, are of the highest quality and are being delvered
into an environment of restncted competitive supply

The Group also has a pipeline of other development
opportunittes, INcluding the mixed-use and high-end
residential opportuniies respectively at the Ram Brewery
and Odeon Kensington

Strategy

Qur overall objective i1s to deliver attractive, long-term retums
to shargholders through investment, development, sale and
management of UK real estate

Qur strategy 1s to focus on real estate opportunities

— where we have inherent skills, such as site assembly,
planning and construction,

— predominantly located in London,

— pnncipally refating to high-end residential, mxed-use and
Central London office developments,

— worlang with jont venture partners, where appropnate, and

— ncorporatng structured finance to drnve returns
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The strategy Is being implemented through

— the delivery of high quality real estate, typified by our
developments at The Walbrook, St Botolphs and
Lancaster Gate, in areas of the real estate market
where supply s constraned,

- the assembly of a development pipeline which can
provide the Group with inherent cpportunities to develop,
either solely or injoint venture with others, and

- adhenng to nsk-adjusted return disciplines

Bank funding, which the real estate industry has used
extensively In recent years, has been severely restnctedas a
result of the banking cnsis and is unavalable, otherthan cna
very imited basis, for speculative development Therefore, our
longer term funding mode! will be designed with the flexibility
to accommodate capital from joint venture or other business
partners and, to a lesser degree than previocusly, bank funding
We will seek to undertake a project management role for larger
projects for which a value-added success fee will be sought

In doing so, we will reduce the capital outlay n any one project
and will leverage our skill base with partners who are willing to
share development nsk in order to drive value

Developments will only be taken forward as market condrtions
permit The Group will continue to focus primanly on large,
high qualtty developments, where there are opportunities to
add value We will continue tofocus principally on high-end
residential and mixed-use schemes as well as, where
appropnate, Central London office developments

Delivery of value
Pnonties to deliver further value nciude

— the leasing of the remaming space at The Walbrook and
St Botolph Buldings on competitive terms to de-nsk and
dnve further value,

— the sale of further apartments at our Lancaster Gate
development, adding to the signrficant value already created,

— the design and creation of a new scheme for the Ram
Brewery, wihich will provide a development for the endunng
benefit of the commurnity while addressing the concerns
of other consultees, ncluding statutory bodies,

- realising the value from Odeon Kensington, a site
which has planning perrrission, erther through sale or
redeveloprment in conmunctionwith a joint venture partner,
and

— selective disposals of non-core properties
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Operational review
City of London offices
Market overview

The year has seen a considerable posttive shift in market
condmions and sentiment in the City occupational market
Take-up has increased for all untt sizes, and there has been
renewed actvty from large financial sector occupiers Over the
12 months to 30 June 2010, take-up totalled 7 6 millon sq ft,
an 80 per cent Increase on the preceding year and 15 per cent
higher than the 10-year annual average

Availability has also fallen considerably over the last year, due to
the marked slow-down in development actvty caused by the
lack of funding In the current market, and the strong levels

of take-up Total avadabilty has fallen by 22 per cent, with the
availability of new and refurbished space falling by 47 per cent
The speculative developrment pipeling 1s currently at its lowest
level for five years with 2 4 milkon sq ft under construction,
800,000 5q ft of which will complete within the next
sixmonths

Pnme headline rents have already grown by 13 6 per cent to
£50 00 per sq ft over the last 12 months, and it 1s our view
that the lack of qualtty supply will be the pnncipal driver of rental
growth going forward Pnme rents are expected to reach

£52 50 per sq ft by the end of 2010, and there has already
been evidence outside the nomal pnme definition where
values in excess of this have been achieved Since the end of
the second quarter of the calendar year, UBS has commutted
to pre-let 700,000 sq ft at 4-6 Broadgate on a 20-year term
atarent of £54 50 persq ft Looking further ahead, atthough
there are still downside threats to the outlook for the economy,
occupier demand remains solid and coupled with continuing
Iimited supply, pnme rents are expected to increase by

10 5percent to £58 00 per sq ft by theend of 2011

Sourcer Knight Frank

“Commentators
predict prime rents
in the City to
rise significantly.”

The Walbrook Building London EC4

Foster & Partners have designed this pnme office development
which 1s located in the central core of the City of London close
to the Bank of England and Mansion House The bullding
provides approximately 445,000 sq ft of high quality Grade A
office and retail accommodation and represents the onty
completed vacant new building in the City capable of meeting
the demands of a single occupier requinng greater than
150,000 sq ft

Practical completion has now been achieved under the ‘design
and build’ contract with the construction costs being within
budget In environmental terms and inine with the quality of
the scheme, The Walbrook Bulding achieves an *excellent’
design assessment rating under BREEAM (Bulding Research
Establishment Environmental Assessment Method)

Fcllowing the formal launch of the bulding into the leasing
market, we continue, together with our leasing agents,

to offer the bulding set against a dminshing avadabiltty

of new buldings and a lack of new supply coming forward
over the next three to four years

The St Botolph Buitding London EC3

This strking new building stands on the eastem side of the City
of London and has been designed by Gnmshaw Architects
The completed development stands on an island site and
provides some 560,000 sq ft of high quality Grade A office and
retal accommodation Under the BREEAM assessment, this
bulding achieves a ‘very good’ for ts environmental performance

A number of milestones have been achieved dunng the course
of the year

We were able to complete levels 1 and 2 on time which
enabled Lockton International to move in and start operating
on 1 June 2010 They now have approximately 500 people
working in the building Lackton are paying a rent of some
£45 00 persg ft ona 20-year lease term with upward only
rent reviews




At the turn of the year, we achieved a further letting of sorme:
145,000 sqg ft to lawyers Clyde & Co ona 20-year lease at an
initial rental of £48 00 per sq ft , with upward only rent reviews
and a rent free pened of circa 36 months We understand
Clyde & Co will start fitting out towards the end of this calendar
year so that they can be in occupation in the latter part of 2011

We have also now achieved practical completion of the buillding
which occurred earlier this month

The office eferment of the bullding 1s now 45 per cent lst and
we continue to actively market the accommaodation, through
leading City agents, on a floor by floor basis

London residential
Market overview

The improverment in the Pame London Market continued
through to the end of June 2010, altthough there are signs that
growth slowed dunng the last three months of the financial year
following considerable gains seen dunng the latter part of 2009
and early 2010 Purchaser actvity gathered romentum
through 2009 and earty 2010, driven by cash-nch buyers not
dependent on high levels of mortgage finance, the continued
relative weakness of sterhng and London’s status as a centre
of world finance Whilst pnce growth has generally slowed
nthe key markets for intemational buyers such as Chelsea,
Kensingtonand St John's Wood, the strongest growth has
continued to be in the pnme South-West London markets,
such as Fulham, Wandsworth and Richmond, dnven by
domestic ‘needs based' demand

At the top end of the pnme market in Central London

(+£210 mullion), traditionally fuelled by strong demand from
international buyers, we are still witnessing solid demand for the
best properties Good pnces are still being achieved for finished
product at this end of the market, where supply I1s tight, and

is reinforced by a lack of new schernes starting  The scarcity

of available development finance will continue to constran new
project starts although there is some ewidence of appetite

from lending banks to provide financing to this market, but on
almied scale

The relative weakness In stering continues to make UK
property appealing to overseas buyers and s helping generate
international demand, with the spread of nationalties buying
Increasing each year

Source: Savits
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Lancaster Gate LondonW?2

This property was acquired in July 2006 Planning permission
was obtained for 192,000 sqft of ultra-pnme residential, which
was refined this year by obtaning permission to provide the
affordable accommodation off-site, and change the scheme

to an ‘all-prvate’ development with 77 residential apartments
In this regard, the requisite off-site affordable accommodation
has been acquired

Construction is progressing in tne with the construction
programme, with practical completion for the whole scheme
scheduled n summer 2011 There will be a comprehensive
range of residential units, combiring the histoncal features
and the grand setting of the bulding overlooking Hyde Park,
with contemnporary design and facilities

At the beginning of the year, we had achieved pre-sales

for circa 27 per cent of the scheme by area Further milestone
depostts relating to these sales have been receved from the
purchasers In accordance with the contractual terms  Since
then, the scheme has been ofically launched onto the market
with a show apartment dressed Following this, there have
been further sales and, as at 30 June 2010, pre-sales of around
52 per cent by area, equal to just over £230 miflion of revenue,
have been contracted
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Odeon Kensington London W8

This property was acquired towards the end of 2005 and 1s
held freehold with a short-term lease to Odeon Cinemas which
1S subject to a development break clause 1tis located ina pnme
residential area on the south-side of Kensington High Street,
Just south of Holland Park

Planning consent was granted in November 2008, foran
all-prvate residential scheme of around 100,000 sg ft with
35 apartments, five town houses, a basement car park,
mufti-screen public cinema and off-site affordable housing

Towards the end of 2008, we acquired Northacre's interest
in the scheme for £2 25 milkon and the property 1S now
wholly-owned by the Group

At the current time development has not commenced and
we are reviewing our options regarding this site, with a view
to its redevelopment

Leinster House Hotel London W2

This property was acquired in October 2007 and 1s located
drrectly opposite our Lancaster Gate scheme An income 1s
denved from the hotel through a block-bocking agreemernit
with Westminster City Council As previously reported, we

will intiate discussions with the planning authonties regarding
the redevelopment In due course and expect a future scheme
on this site to benefit from the success of the Lancaster

Gate development

London mixed-use
Ram Brewery London SWig

The site consists of approxmately 8 acres in the centre
of Wandsworth, close to the Town Hall

Following cur planning application for the main part of this site,
Wandsworth Council resoived in Decermber 2008 to grant
planning consent for a tugh quality residential-led mixed-use
scheme, which was supported by the Greater London
Authonty and Transport for London The scheme was for over
onemilionsq ft of accommodation, compnsing approximately
1,000 apartments and 200,000 sq ft of retall, restaurant and
office space In February 2009 however, the Secretary of State
decided to call in the planning application for a local Inquiry,
which was held in November and December 2009 The result
was that the main part ofthe scheme was rejected by the
Planning Inspector and Secretary of State However, our
propesals for Buckhold Road, compnsing over 200 apartments,
were acoepted as satisfactory subject to the draft Section 106
agresment being amended

This is being prepared in conjunction with Wandsworth Council
and we hope to revert to the Secretary of State in autumn 2010
in this regard

The key 1ssues revolved around the two tall buldings proposed
and ther location withir the conservation area and proximity

to anearby gasholder Most of the regenerative benefits created
by the scheme were accepted, and will be reincorporated

into the next planming application Accordingly, a new scheme
15 being designed to reflect the Planning Inspector and
Secretary of State's comments It 1sexpected that a new
planning application wili be ready for submissicn dunng this
financial year

The subsequent site acquistion made in 2008 of properhes

at 1-9 Church Row will not be incomorated into the revised
scheme These will be subject to a further planning application
once the revised application for the main site 1s resotved
Partial completion of this acquisition took place towards the
end of 2009, with completion of the balance in earty 2010

We will consult In due course with the Planning Authorty
regarding its future redevelopment

The Croydon Estate London Borough of Croydon

Minerva’'s Croydon Estate compnses approxmately 8 acres,
essentially dmvided into two large land holdings wiathin the town
centre The existing buldings comprse around one million

sq ft of offices dating frorm the 1980'sand 1970's, one of

the UK's largest department stores and addiional retail and
lelsure accommaodation

Croydon Council's new ‘Imagine Croydon' iniative 1s now

Into the second stage following the intial consuftation with land
owners The preferred master planner will be appointed by

the end of September and wll Inttially work with all stakeholders
to identrfy the potentiat of the Mid Croydon area The master
planned opticns are scheduled to be published 1N earty 2011

A further penod of consultation will enable land owners and
interested parties to make further comments

Minerva, as one of the key strategic stakeholders n the
Central Croydon area, will play a magpor part in shaping the
future development plan The intensfication of development
incorporating signficant ncreases incommercial and
residential accommodation will seek to meet the aspiration
of Croydon which has been identified and pnontised as the
‘'key’ economic hub for growth in South London

Durng the year, the Group has concentrated efforts on
generating Inccme in the short and medium term from its
existing properties The focus to denve rent from the
leasing of the vacant shop units has been very active and
successful, with attention now being focused on the office
accommodation where we are looking to improve
occupancy levels




Financial review

Review of results
Introduction

The results for the year have benefited from an mpraverment
In the valuation of the Group’s real estate portfolio since

30 June 2009, which 1s widely considered to have been

a cyclical low for commercial property valuations

Headline results

Basic net asset value per share at 30 June 2010 ncreased to
8 9 pence (30 June 2009 net iability per share of 28 8 pence)
A more relevant measure of the Group’s position is Diluted
EPRA ('EPRA’) net asset value per share, which incorporates
the valuation of the Group’s total property, ncluding trading
properties before taxation, and adds back the post-tax far
value on financial Instruments at 30 June 2010 The EPRA
net asset value per share increased by 180 percent to

131 8 pence at 30 June 2010 (30 June 2009 47 1 pence)

The table below reconciles basic net assets per share as
shown in the consolidated accounts to diluted net assets
per share set out by EPRA

30 June 30 Jure
2010 2009
Pence Pence

Basic net assets/(labilties) per share 8.9 (28 8)

Potential share awards (0.3) -
Diluted basic net assets/liabilities)
per share 8.6 (28 8)
Group's share of
- Revaluation surplus on trading

properties (pre-tax) 704 429
— Revaluation deficit on valuation

of financial nstruments {post-tax) 528 330
EPRA net assets per share 1318 471

Consolidated ncome statement

Profit before tax, ncorporating property revaluation movements
of our investment portfolio onty, was £69 1 milhion (2009 loss
of £289 2 million)

The results can be broken down as follows

2010 2009
£m £m

Net outgoings from ongoing

operations (15.9) 69

Exceptional administrative costs (2.4) -

Farr value adjustments

— Properties 107.9 (284 6)

- Denvative financial nstruments (27.4) 24

Gain/{oss) on sale of nvestment/

owner-occupled property 6.9 01)

Profit/{loss) before tax 69.1 (289 2}
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Net property income increased to £6 9 millon dunng the year
(2009 £5 2 million) This 1S manly a result of lower property
outgoeings, principally in relation to costs on our estate in
Croydon which were high in the comesponding year when the
development agreement was terminated, although the net
effect of this has been partly offset by reduced rental ncome
following the disposal of the 42 Wigmore Street property

in the year

Dunng the year, net financing costs totalled £42 7 million
(2009 £3 1 milion), net of interest capitalisation of £39 8 milllion
(2009 £32 2 millon) on the Group's development projects
The princtpal component of the iIncrease 1s the adverse
moverment in valuation of demvative financial instruments

of £27 4 millon, most of wihich relates to an interest rate swap
which no lenger qualfies for hedge accounting purposes
following the refinancing dunng the year and 1s therefore
expensed through the Income statement It should be noted
that circa £6 3 milkon of the moverment relates to recycling

of a hedge reserve through the ncome statement, with no
consequential effect on net assets Interest on development
projects which achieved practical complstion in the year and
lower interest recevable on short term cash deposits are also
contributory factors to the increase

Total administrative expensesfor the year were £10 1 millon
(2009 £6 9 milion) The ncrease in the year s mainly in refation
to exceptional costs ncurred n connection with the unsolicited
approach and offer frorm KiFin for the remainder of the shares

it did not already own in the Company and the subsequent
General Meeting to re-elect the Charman, Oliver Whitehead

As referred to above, the Group’s Investment property
performance has benefited dunng the year under review

This has been a result of strengthening investment yields for
pnme real estate in London, aswell as an improvement to the
financiai terms expected to be obtained on leasing our City

of London developments The Group 1s benefiting from its
delvery of new large floor-plate buldings in the City of London,
for which existing and forecast competitive supply Is severely
restncted The increase n valuation of our City developments
has been partly offset by a fall nthe valuation of the Ram
Brewery site where, despite a resolution to grant planning
permissicn by Wandsworth Council and support from the
Mayor of London, planning pemmission was not granted by
the Secretary of State These, together with other factors have
been reflected in the valuation of our investment properties
which has shown, in aggregate, an increase of £107 9 million
{2009 reduction of £281 G millon}, after adjusting for
expenditure and disposals in the year
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Qur high-end residential projects at Lancaster Gate and
Odeon Kensington, the performance of which had remaned
comparatively resihent dunng the downturn, have also

shown strong valuation ncreases in the year, equivalent to

£58 9 million, after adjusting for costs incumed inthe year
(2009 net decrease In value of £37 6 milklon) These properties
are now valued at £398 1 million (30 June 2008 £292 2 milion}
and remain significantly above their histoncal cost

The Group's operations have realised sufficient tax losses to
ensure thera 1s no liability to either comporation or deferred tax
(2009 credit £2 2 milion) Although the investment properties
have increased in valuation dunng the year, overal they are held
at below the relevant tax-based cost

The Group's profit for the year was £69 1 millon (2009 loss
of £287 1 millon) No dvidend has been paid or declared
dunng this financial year (2009 £ni)

Consolidated statement of financial position

The Group's property porticlio has been valued by CB Richard
Elis Limited ('{CBRE") at 30 June 2010 The total property
portfolio has been valued at £1,124 9 million (30 June 2009
£807 0 milion), compnsing nvestment properties at £726 8
milion (30 June 2009 £514 8 millon} and trading properties
at £398 1 mikon (30 June 2009 £292 2 milion) In aggregate,
after adjusting for expenditure and disposals in the year,
investment and trading property valuations have both
increased by 17 4 per cent with, as mentioned earlier, only the
investment property revaluation movement beng reflected in
the income statement

“The EPRA netasset
value per share

Annual portioio

Valuation valuahon

30 Jurse 2010 nCrease

m %
The Walbrook Building, London EC4 240.8
The St Botolph Building, London EC3 245.7
Ram Brewery, London SW18 84.0

Croydon Estate, London Borough

of Croydon 65.0
Westerhill Road, Glasgow 57.1
Others 34.2

Investrment properties 726.8 17 4
Lancaster Gate, London W2 320.1
Odeon Kensingtan, London' W8 78.0

Trading properties 398.1 174

Total property portfolio 1,124.9 17 4

A reconciiation of the movement in the valuation of the
nvestment and trading properties 1s set out befow

Investment Tradng
At valuation— 1 July 2009 5148 2922
Additons 1429 470
Drisposals @270 -
Revaluation 107 9 589
Moverment In prepayments and
accrued Income (i18 -
At valuation — 30 June 2010 726.8 398.1

increased by 180% to
131.8p at 30 June 2010

graphic removed

graphic removed




No nvestment or trading property acquisiions were made
dunng the year Additions, under both categones of property,
pnncipally relate to expenditure Incurred progressing our
development programme Investment property disposals
made dunng the year relates to the part of 42 Wigmore Street
held for Investment purposes

The Group’s trading properties, Lancaster Gate and Odeon
Kensington, are stated at their histoncal cost of £228 6 milion
(30 June 2008 £181 6 millon) In aggregate in the statement
of financial position, In ine with the accounting policy of the
Group The independent valuation of these properties by CBRE
has therefore not been reflected in the Group's basic net asset
value, but is reflected in the Group’s estimated pre-tax share
of the revaluation surplus of these properties in the EPRA net
asset value EPRA net asset value takes into account the profit
shanng arrangerments in place with Northacre plc on the
Lancaster Gate development, which provide for Minerva to
earn profits based on the following tranches

%
On profits up to 10% of project costs 95
On profits between 10% and 15% of project costs 80
60
50

On profits between 15% and 20% of project costs
On profits above 20% of project costs

As prevously reported, dunng the year the Group acquired
Narthacre's interest In Odeon Kensington for £2 25 milhon,
excluding acquistion costs This acquisition of Northacre's
equity interest, together with ther share of the future profit,
now means that the property 1s entirely owned by Minerva for
the future benefit of ts shareholders The statement of financial
postion Ncludes amounts owing from the minonty interest

of £0 2 milion (30 June 2008 amounts owing to the minonty
interest of £0 3 milion), which now represents Northacre's
interest In Lancaster Gate only

Group net debt at 30 June 2010 was £804 8 mullion (30 June
2009 £638 6 milion), compnsing borowings of £859 8 millicn
{30 June 2009 £720 9 milion) reduced by cash and short-term
depostts of £55 0 million {30 June 2009 £82 3 million)

The increase i net debt dunng the year of £166 2 millon s
prncipally In relation to the expenditure incurred prograssing
the developments, the completion of the acquisition of
properties at the Ram Brewery, the purchase of the minornty
interest and profit share n Odeon Kensington, partially offset
by the net proceeds ansing from the disposal of 42 Wigmore
Street and deposits receved on Lancaster Gate which have
been appled aganst the project loan

Year ended Year ended
30June 2010  30June 2009
fm

Group borrowings £m

Balance brought forward 7209 5266
Loan addtions 1689 2150
Loan repayments (27 0) (18 8)
Loan amortisation and

other movements (3.0) 19

Balance camed forward 859.8 7209
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Financing
Overview

The actmties of the Group are financed through a mixture

of equity, cash and bank bomowings  As part of its normal
actnities, the Group finances acquistions and funds
developments with bank debt, while mantaining cash in
reserve Loans are arangedwith banks with which the Group
has long-standing relationships and cash 1s placed with
selected financial Institutions with good credit ratings

The Group has a number of financings in place, with total
committed loan faciities of approxamately €1 bilion Further
to the loan refinancing and restructunngs completed durnng
the year, the Group has undrawn loan faciiies of circa
£139 3 mililon (30 June 2009 £349 3 million)

At 30 June 2010, the average interest cost of debt for the
Group was 6 3 per cent (30 June 2009 6 5 per cent), witha
weighted average interest margin, significantly below prevaiing
market margins, of 1 5 per cent (30 June 2009 1 6 per cent)

Net debt as a proportion of the Group's total property portfolio
at valuation was 72 per cent at 30 June 2010 (30 June 2009
79 per cent)

Summary of banking revisions dunng the year
Loan matunties

Dunng the first haff of the yearunder review, we extended
four faciities totalling £144 3 millon which were due to expire
N 2010 The Groupis now In the posttion where it has no
scheduled loan matunties in the current financial year ending
30 June 2011

In respect of faciities scheduled to mature inthe year ending
30 June 2012, the Group has yet to formally commence
discussions regarding therr renewal The Group has received
written comfort from the bank that provides the facilities,

that it sees no reason why the faciihes cannot be extended on
appropnate terms, subject to its nternal credit approval
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Financial covenants

Dunng the year under review we also concluded discussions
with our banks, and negotiated revised commercial terms for
development facilives approaching £600 milion, which include,
inter alia, the deferral of loan to value covenants  Following this,
other than a facility totaling circa £19 1 million {(which continues
to be in comphance based on the valuations at 30 June 2010),
the Group has no net worth or lcan to value covenants due to
be tested dunng the current financial year ending 30 June 2011

The faciites provded in relation to The Walbrook and St Botolph
Buildings, as is common practice for such development loans,
contain certan leasing milestones These pnncipal milestones,
which are at levels which require less than two-thirds of the
respectve buldings to be leased, are set to be tested dunng
the financial year ending 30 June 2012 Gven the extrerne
shortage of avallable new Grade A office accommodation in
the City of London, your Board beleves that these milestones
will be duly achieved

Benefits secured by the Group

In order to retan the significant loan faciities relating to

The Walbrook and the St Botolph developments, which are
at levels which the Board believes are not generally available
In the cument market, we agreed to grant specific imited
additional securty for future interest payments and certain
other financing costs In respect of the two Cily property
development loans In exchange, the Group secured from
the banks several signficant concessions including

- the removal of Minerva plc interest guarantees,

- the removal of Group net worth covenants, and

— the provision of new committed funding and the removal
of restnctions on existing funding totalling £31 millon, for the
purposes of financing post-completion interest and cther
finance costs in relation to the two developments

The aforementioned addtional secunty granted in relation to
both developments effectively consists of capped charges over
the Group's share of future dvidends from its Lancaster Gate
development Additionally, n relation to the St Botolph
development, a similary capped second-ranking charge was
granted over our Westerhill Road property in Scotland and is
only enforceabie in the event that the proceeds from the
realisation of all other secunty over the St Botolph developrment
are insufficient to satisfy the labilties they secure The Group
estimates that the maximum amount secured by the additional
secunty I1s approximately £37 mifion, which s less than half

of the Group’s projected share of dmdends from the Lancaster
Gate development

Extt fees

Both City development foans contan extt fees when the loans
are fully repasd For The Walbrook Bulding, this 1s capped
atupto 1 35 per cent of the total facity commtrment For The
St Botolph Building, the rmaxamum fee represents 10 per cent
of the net profit of the development after settling all outstanding
obligations of the borrower, but 1s subject to a minmum fee

of £0 Smillon These fees represent obligations of subsidianes
of Minerva plc

Interest rate management

With regard to nsk management, the Group’s policy is, where
possible, to match the revenue profile from the properties

with certainty in relation to interest costs Where there 1s less
certainty of revenue, for example as 1sthe case where
properties are being developed, we endeavour to hedge
interest costs with swaps, caps and other financial Instruments
In terms of interest rate hedging, we use interest rate denvatives
to manage the iInterest rate profile and, as at 30 June 2010,

94 per cent (30 June 2008 96 per cent) of the Group's bank |
bomowings were hedged under nterest rate swap agreements |
Inaddition, the Group has In place mterest rate swap agreements
to hedge future bank borrowings as we progress and hold our
developments Beanng in mind the unprecedented reduction

in UK and world interest rates since autumn 2008, the interest
rate swap agreements historically put in place are at higher

than prevailing interest rates for the respective penods and this
position 1s reflected in the valuation ¢f the Group’s denvative
financial nstruments EPRA net asset value adds back the
Group's share of the non-cash valuation deficit of £88 5 milion
(30 June 2009 £53 2 milion) on the basis that the interest rate
swaps are held to matunty

Summary

The bank locan restructunng and extensions negotiated this

year represent a true measure of the highly constructive

relattonship that the Group has with its existing lending banks

and the quality of its portfolio The restructured arrangements

provide very meaningful benefits to the Group as awhole as

they not ondy secure important addtional financang, but also |
enable it to be nng-fenced from continuing net worth covenants

and interest guarantees, thus imiting future nsk Through these |
arangements, all shareholders continue to benefit from

the preservation of faciities on terms and at levels which are
not generally avalable in the curent market Thisis particulary '
evident this financial year, wath the Group demonstrating

a strong financal performance, with EPRA net asset value
increasing by 180 per cent




Other performance indicators

We have already set out the financial performance indicators
by which we assess our business mode!, being basic and
EPRA net asset value The sustanability of our strategy
however, 15 equally underpinned by the attention we pay to
wider, business-critical, aspects of our actvities All of our
developrments have an impact on the communities in which
we operate and are subject to a range of legal, regulatory and
planning regmes, we are committed to maintaining compliance
in allthese areas Consistent with our commitment to be

at the forefront n this arena, we look te anticipate and, where
possible, take commercial advantage of Issues which may
affect the future value and earnings potential of the business

Health and safety

The health and safety of our employees and contractorsis

a concemn of paramount importance to Minerva and we are
committed to a regme of safe working practices We had

one Reportable Incident on our projects in the reporting period
under review (2009 seven Reportable Incidents)

People

We have a small and strong tearm of commercially-focused and
expenenced people, combining site-assembly, development,
management and financing skills Theiracumen delivers the
skills which underpin the Minerva market offenng Therr loyalty
to the Group 1s reflected in terms of their average length of
service which stands at 8 6 years at 30 June 2010(30 June
2009 7 Gyears)

Planning

Planning considerations constriute one of the major value
drnivers of our business Maintaining good relationships with
local planning authonties whilst leveraging and growing our
reputation to secure timely permissions consistent with our
commercial objectives 1s fundamentally important to our
success In achieving our strategy Dunng the year under review,
one planning application was referred to a public inguiry and
declined by the Secretary of State and another application

was successful
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Energy and carbon emissions reduction

We continue to work towards reducing our carbon emissions,
and dentfying opportunities for ncorporating energy efficiency
measures INto our developments With the introduction of
additional regutation in this area and a growing demand from
potental occupiers for energy-efficient buldings, we recognise
the value associated with improving the sustainability of our
Investments and exceeding where possible the existing
requirements for buldings toreduce carbon dioxide ermssions

We are pleasedto report that preliminary assessments predict
that The Walbrook Bulding wilexceed the Part L requirements
by 38 percent (2009 38 percent) and The St Botolph Building
will exceed the requirementshy 11 per cent (2009 11 per
cent) For our cther developments the predicted performance
aganst the Part L requirements will be included in our Business
Rewview in future years In respect of Lancaster Gate, because
of the nature of the lsted buikding, it 1s predicted that an
EcoHomes ‘Pass’ will be obtaned
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Key risks and uncertainties

The Group's pnmary objective 1s to deliver good long-term
returns to shareholders through the nvestment, development,
sale and management of UK real estate

We recognise that nsk is attached to making investment
decisions in order to dnve growth for shareholders
This1s amplified in the UK property sector by exposure n
development and geanng

In setting out the Group's main nsks and uncertainties, the
cutlook, and in respect of other content, the Annual Report and
Accounts contamn statements which, by thewr nature, cannot be
considered indications of likelihood or certainty The staterments
are based on the knowledge and information at the date of
preparation of this Business review, and what are beleved to
be reasonable udgements A wide range of factors may cause
the actual outcome and results to differ matenally from those
contained within, or implied by, these vanous forward loclking
statements Nor should any of these statements be construed
as a profit forecast

Our main nsks and uncertainties revolve around the
following areas

Business environment

External economic and market factors may adversely affect
the Group's business model The Board specfically considers
the nsk these factors pose at an annual strategy review

They are also considered at each Board meeting and by
management when making decisions

Property market

The Group's speculative developments may suffer from

poor market demand from tenants or buyers We address
this, in accordance with our strategy, by looking to situate
our developments n supply-constraned sectors of the
market in well-located areas of London The Group's current
developments, which are pnme, are designed and pnced

to attract tenants or buyers and leading agents are employed
to market them effectively

The lack of competitive supply of new bulldings, caused by the
credit crunch, has improved the relatve position of the Group
The leasing of the Group's commercial developments and the
sale of the units within its residential developments represents
an uncertanty upcn which the Group remains focused

Development

The Group may acquire sites with the intention of increasing
therr value through a change of use or redevelopment, but
planning permission may not be achieved We seek to address
this nsk by obtaining approprate expert acvice before an
acquistion is made and pnor to the subrmission of a planning
application Before significant planning applications are made,
the Group, and its adwisers, have detaled consuftations with
the relevant planning authonty, statutory authonties and other
relevant stakeholders However, iIn arcumstances where
planning permission 1s denied, the Group will seek to
understand the undertying reasons for such a decision and will
consider submitting a new application which seeks to address
some or all of the concemns raised

Unforeseen environmental and archaeological issues and
related regulatory concems which come to ight dunng the
Group’s development of a site may delay completion and
increase costs We manage this nskby undertaking desktop
or full assessments as well as physical nvestigations as
necessary and where practical We strve to provide adequate
contingency for such matters in the development appraisal
and programme, supponted by appropnate Insurance when
available The Group appomnts specialist advisers in this area

Control may be lost dunng construction projects which may
result in unnecessary specifications, Increased costs and
addtional time to complete To address this nsk we carefully
monitor our developments, enter nto design and build
contracts where possible and appropnate, and appoint skilled
professionals to help advise and manage the project plans,
costsand progress In addtion, contingency plans are
provided to help miigate this nsk

Changes in legislation, regulation or best practice, particularty n
relation to planning and taxation, may mpact the costs, tmings
and profitability of the Group’s schemes inprogress  Such changes
are closely monitored with the assistance of appropnate
professional adwsers so that any impact may be mitigated
where pessible and, where relevant, opportunities identified




Finance

Appropnate financing needs to be in place to fund acquistions
and developments and to meet speciic financial obligations
The Group addresses this by placing a strong emphasis

on bulding long-term relationships with lenders, who are kept
apprassed of the Group’s progress and strategy, with the am
of ensunng that the Group's facilities appropnately reflect ts
circumstances and the business emaronment in which it operates

Compliance with lenders' covenantsis a key 1ssue, especially
in the cumrent economic ernvironment The Group regularty
monitors the requirements of each loan facility in this regard
and, If necessary or appropnate, seeks to negotiate
amendments of covenants and cbligations In order to ensure,
where possible, that the loan financing continues and

IS appropnate

The Group ams to retain adequate cash reserves dunng the
developrment phase of ts projects and to provide tt with the
ability to fund its overheads and nvest N new projects as
appropnate This 1s addressed by carefui cash monitoring,
undertaken through regular budget reviews, development
apprasals and other cash flow reviews The impact of market
conditions on the Group's cash flow ts kept under review

Movements in interest rates can have animpact on the
profitabilty of projects and affect cash flow We manage this
nsk by monitonng interest rates and entenng into interest rate
swap and related hedging agreements

Corporate responsibility

Health and safety 1s a key 1ssue especially where property
construction s involved Poor practice or carelessness could
cause injury or a fatality which may also impact the business
The Group takes health and safety matters very senously

and the Board considers health and safety at each scheduled
meeting Procedures are monitored to ensure compliance

by the Group and its contractors with the Construction (Design
and Management) Regulations as well as other legislation,
regulation and good practice

Concern about the impact of the business on the environment,
tocal communittes and other stakeholders may impact the
Group's share pnce or demand for its properties by buyers
ortenants We understand the importance of corporate
responsibiity and its relevance when making business decisions
The Group's developments are therefore planned to meet

and, wherever possible, exceed the requirements set cut In
environmental regulation and planning gudelines The Group
regards strong relatonships with stakeholders as witally

important and particularly encourages regular dialogue with the

local community Each year the Group provides a Corporate
Responsibility Report to stakeholders to communicate its
progress and asprrations for the corming year
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Corporate governance

The ownership of over 29 per cent of the Company's Issued
share capital by one sharehaoider can restnct the Company’s
capability to approve special business at shareholder meetings
requinng a 75 per cent supportfrom the members This may
restnct the Board's ability to issue shares or make necessary
changes to the Company’s constitution to reflect best practice
In corporate governance or company law The Board continues
tomonitor and address this issue at Board meetings and seeks
to mantain an actve dialogue with its major shareholders

People

The attrachon and retention of key management and employees
15 of particular importance, given the Group’s small headcount,
and the skilis these indmduals bnng to the organisation

The Group addresses this matter by regularty reviewing salanes
and benefits to ensure that Cirectors and employees’ remuneration
is competitive The Group seeks to align executive Directors

and employees’ rewards withthe Group’s achieverments and
performance through annual bonuses and long-term share
based arangements The Group places emphasis on training
and development where appropnate

The potential mpact on the Group, were any of these nsks

to matenalise, depends on the seventy of the event The Group
has in place a control environment that is regularty monitored
and which identrfies nsks to the Group, addressing them with
measures to mitigate ther impact The Group seeks to attain
the appropnate balance whereby the opportunities and therr
associated nsks are identified and explored
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Board of Directors
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Oliver Whitehead cse
Chawrman

Aged 63

Charman of the Nominations Commities
Member of the Audit Committea
Mernber of the Rermuneration Comrmitte

Salmaan Hasan sa mBa
Chief Executve
Aged 45

Ivan Ezelael Bsc Fca aTi cF

Finance Director and Company Secretary
Aged 44

Tim Garnham esc

Group Development Director
Aged 53

John Matthews rca

Non-executve Director
Aged 65

Senor Independant Drector
Charman of the Remuneration Commuttee
Charman of the Audt Cormmittee
Member of the Nominatons Committee

Joned tha Board of Mnenva n July 2006 and appoirtad
Chawrnan n Nevember 2006 He s also Charman of
Norland Managed Sevices Limeedt He was Chief Exacutive
of Alfred McAlone fom May 1993 to August 2003 and
from then untl June 2007 was Charman of Alffred McAlpne.
Betweoen March 2004 and February 2005 he was
non-executrve Charman of ITNET ple. Formerty Group
Chet Executive of Baboock Internatioral Group pic,
hanng premously been an executive Drector of AMEC plc
and John Lang pk

Joned Minerva in Juy 2005 from Deutsche Postbank AG
where as Head of Property Finance, heran the unit for

11 years conchuding over £5 bilhon of structured property
loans i the UK and tuope Prior to this he worked at
industral Bank of Japan and Samuel Mortagu n London
Ha 13 responsitie, aicngside the Board, n satting

the strategy of tha Group  day-to-cay management

and new DUSINess Niaives

Resporsible for finance, accounting tax and co-ordnaton
of maragerment and exdernal reportryy He qualified as

a Chartered Accountant with KPMG and worked for
Capttal and Regional Properties pk: as Group Financal
Controter befors onng Minerva pic inNovember 1997
as Chef Financial Officer He was apponted to the Board
nMarch 2005

Joined Minenva in Janary 1998 from the Trafakgar House
Property Group whers, as Deputy Managng Director

of the property daon, he was responsibia for the UK
Gavelopment programme nciuding a number of magor
London developments He is responsible for the overall
control of the Group's development and leasing actvbies

Qualfiad as a Chartered Accountant with Ceon Wison & Co
Worked n corporate finance at N M Rothschild and County
Natwest which he was wth for 17 years lafterlyasa
Managng Dvector Deputy Charman and Deguty Chef
Executve of Beazer picfrom 1968810 1991 Cheef Exocutve
of Indosuez Capital Limred until 1984 when heleft to
concantrate on his ron-execttive drectorships n partculay
Crest Nicholson pke ofwhich ha became Charman n 1996,
and Regus plc of which he becarne Chammian n 2002

He was apponnted to the Board of Minarva n Septermber
2007 and as Senior Independent Crrector in November
2008 He retired as Charman of Regus earler this year
and s curently Serwor indepencient Director at Dyploma plc
and SDLplc
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Daruel Kitchen esc Fcca

Naon-executive Dwector

Aged 58

Member of the Nominatons Committes
Mernber of the Audt Committee
Member of the Rernuneraton Committee

Martin Pexton samea

Non-executve Director

Aged 54

Mearrber of the Nomnations Commiten
Mexmber of the Audit Comimittee
Member of the Rermuneration Committea

Senior management team

Mark Cherry Bsc MRICS

Investment

Aged 47

Joned Minerva in Apn| 2005 He comes with wida
expenence in the fiekds of rvestrment and development
hawng previosty worked for Postel Investment
Management Nedson Bakewed, Barckrys Bank and
Mo recently as a drector of Burlord Hewsresporsble
for new acquistions along with specific rvestment

and development prorects

Peter Francis Bsc ACA

Financial Control

Aged 30

Joned Minenva in February 2005 and was promoted
to the position of Financal Controlier v Aprd 2010

He quaified as a Chartered Accountant with Delodte
and s responsible for the Group s day-to-day financial
and adminstratve control

Peter Holroyd

Construction

Agedss

Joned Minerva in Qctober 2005 after completing

the Swiss Re Tower n tha City of London as Swiss Re
Assurance’s Construction Dvector Pnor o that e

was n property development n Canada He s responsible
1onhee.m\m'50\y01 LONGRN CONSINCCN propcts

Edward Moody Bsc MRICS

Asset Management

Agad 49

Joned Mrnerva rn August 1998 from the Corporation

of London where he worked for nine years and headled the
City Fund Portioéo Prior to that he had been at the London

Alexander Morris Bsc

Construction

Aged 38

Joned Mnerva n October 2006 havng previously worked
on the Swiss Re Tower proect for exght years

tha buiding to shel and core and fit-out Prior to that he
was with Gardner and Thecbald,

33

Minerva plic Overvew

Annual repart and acoounts  Governanca

2010 Financial statements

Hewas appontéd to the Board of Minerva on 4 May 2010
Preaously he spent five years as Deputy Chef Executve of
Heron ntermabionall and pnor 1 that ha was Finance Drector
of Green Property pic for eight years Hes cumently
non-executva Chaimman of nsh Natonwida Buiding Socety,
a non-executve Directer of Kingspan Group ple and

of LXB Retal Propertes pic and a member of the Insh
Takeover Panal

He was apponted to the Board of Minerva on 5 March 2010

Previously hewas Managng Dvactor of LMS Capial pie,

a listed prvate equity company nvesting in energy

technology and real estate in the UK anc US, where hewas

responsile r e day-io-Ciay management of the company |
and was anon-axecutve Drector of a number of the
comparny'skey Portfoho busnesses Prior to that Martin
spent fiva years as executve Drector of London Merchant
Secuntes pie the FTSE 250 real estate and prvate eguiy
company now part of Derwent London pic}

Sandra Odell Fcis
Company Secretanal
Aged 43

Joned Mnerva n August 2010 with responsitility for
providing supporet to the Group on all Company Secretanal
and Comorate Governance matters Premously Deputy
Cormparty Secretary at Alanca 8 Lacester pic and Head
of Governance & Pokoy at Uoyds Bankeng Srouppic

Arthur Rixon Bsc

Structured Finance

Aged 59

Joned Minenva tull-time n November 1996 with responsioity
for general property and structured finance Prior o this, he
sport 20 years N banking with Bankers Trust where ha was
a senior Vice President and was responsibie for all aspects

of structured fnancing both in London and the USA,

Steven Yewman 8sC MRICS

Development

Aged 40

Joned Mnena n May 1989 having previously worked at
Land Investorsple His responsdiities nchude development
actvities in Croydon, 10gether with specdic new nvestment
and devsiopment propcts He s a drectar of Croydon
Town Centre Business Improverment Drstnct Limited
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Statement by the Directors on complance with the provisions of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance

The Board considers good corporate governance to be fundamental to the success of the Company and 1s committed to the
highest standards The way inwhich the Company has applied the principles of good governance as set out in Section 1 of the
Corbined Code 2008 on Corporate Governance {the Code’) (now replaced by the UK Corporate Governance Code, whichwaill
apply for the financial year beginning 1 July 2010} 1s set out below

The Company has complied throughout the year wath the prowisions of the Code except for part of the year, dunng which time
the Remuneration and Audrt Committees did not compnse at least two independent non-executive Directors under provisions
B2 1andC 3 1 ofthe Code The selection and appointment of new ndependent non-executive Directors tock place at the
eaniest opportunty following the successful restructunng of the Company’s finances in September 2009 and the unsolicted
bid for the Company that closed in January 2010

Following the appointments of Martin Pexton and Danel Kitchen to the Board in March and May 2010 respectively, the Company
was comphant with all the prowisions of the Code

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board has established cleary defined roles for the Chairman and the Chief Executive The Chatrmaniis responsible for

the leadership of the Board, ensunng its effectiveness setting its agenda, providing challenge and direction for the Directors and
representing the interests of all of the Company’s shareholders Once agreed by the Board as a whole, tis the Chief Executive's
responsibility to ensure delivery of the strategic and financial objectves through the leadership of an effective executve team

Board of Directors

The Company supports the pnnciple of an effective Board leading and controling the Company The Board prowvides
entrepreneunal leadership of the Group within a framework of effective controls which allows nsk to be assessed and managed
The Board has uitimate responsibility for setting overall strategy, acquistions and disposals, internal control, approval of major
capital expenditure projects, treasury and nsk management policies, and consideration of significant matters relating to

the raising of finance and corporate governance The Board cperates within the terms of ts wrtten authonties which include

a schedule of matters which are reserved for tts decision, cther decisions are delegated to management The current members
of the Board, and the roles of each Director, are given in the biographical details of the Directors on pages 32 to 33

Beard independence

The Board considered Olver Whitehead whe joined the Board in 2006 to be independent as a non-executive Director and on his
appointment as Chairman John Matthews who jomed the Board in 2007, and Daniel Kitchen and Manin Pexton who joined the
Board in 2010 are also considered to be independent In making these determinations, the Board has considered whether each
indmdual 1s Independent in character and jJudgement and whether there are relationships or circumstances which are likely

to affect, or could affect, the relevant Director’s judgement  John Matthews was the Senior Independent Director During the year
the Chaiman met with the non-executive Directors without the executive Directors being present Following the appomntments
of Darvel Kitchen and Martin Pexton as additional non-executive Directors, the senior independent director will meet with these
non-executive Directors without the Charman being present at least annually

Board balance

The non-executive Directors who have served on the Board and its Committees have been of high calibre and have contnbuted
wide-ranging commercial and financial expenence to the Board’s decision making process The balance of the Board has

been further strengthened dunng the year by the appointment of two new expenenced, Independent directors, Daniel Kitchen and
Martin Pexton The Board continues to keep the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board under review

Board attendance

In addion to meetings of Directors amanged to discuss particular transactions and events and attendance at the 2009 Annual
General Meeting {AGM) and General Meeting on 5 March 2010, the Board met formalty on seven occasions dunng the year
ended 30 June 2010 The Directors attended all Board and Commuittee meetings where they were members except where
otherwise indicated in the table opposite The table also sets out where Directors are not members but have attended
Committee meetings by invitation
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Audt  Ramuneration Nomminatons
Board Committoa Comrmutiea Commitee

Number of meetings 7 3 3 3

Attendled Attencled Attended Attended
Olver Whitehead 7 3 3 3
Salmaan Hasan 7 - 1’ -
Ivan Ezekiel 7 3t 1! -
Tim Garnham 7 - - -
Daniel Kitchen? 1 - - -
John Matthews 7 3 3 3
Martin Pexton? 2 - 1 -

1 Notamember of the Committes but attended by matation
2 Anerded all possible Board Mestings/lommittes meetngs since ther respectve appantrments to the Board

For each meeting, the Board 1s suppled with information in a form and of a quality appropnate to enable it to discharge its duties

Rotation of Directors

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders, in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company, whereby one-third of the Directors retire by rotation each year Inaddition, all Directors are required
to submit themsetves for re-election at the next AGM following therr apportment by the Board

Evaluation and training

The Board evaluation process was carned out based on a detalled questtonnaire completed by all Directors and informal
discussions with the Charrman Responses were constructive and where changes or mprovements were agreed to be
necessary these are being mplemented The questionnaire covered an extensive range of topics iIncluding communications,
competence and effectiveness of Directors, success of Board Committees, nsk managementand the appropnateness

of the Group's strategy The evaluation process 1s camed out annually and developed to ensure that the Board's performance
continues to improve Training In matters relevant to therr role on the Beard 1s available to all Drectors New Directors

are provided with a tallored induction in order te introduce them to the operations and management of the business

Company Secretary

The role of the Company Secretary 1s carmed cut by the Finance Director, fully supported by an expenenced Deputy Company
Secretary All Directors have access to independent professional advice, paid for by the Company, and to the services of the
Company Secretary who 1s avariable to gve ongoing advice to all Directors on Board procedures and corporate govermance

Board changes
Martin Pexton was appointed a Director of the Company on & March 2010 and Daniel Kitchen was appointed a Director
on4 May 2010

Board Committees

The Board has established three standing Committees These Committees have regularly reviewed, wntten terms of reference
which deal with their authornties and duties and which are available on the Company’s website Non-executve Directors play
the pnmary role in these Committees The Committees are

The Remuneration Committee
The Committee 1s responsible for reviewing the terms and conditions of employment of executive Directors including the
provision of Incentives and performance related benefits The Remuneration report is set out on pages 38 to 43

The Nominations Committee
The Committee is responsible for the selection and appointment of all Directors to the Board and for succession planning
A report by the Nominations Committee 1s set out on page 44

The Audit Committee

The Committee Is responsible for, among other things, the appointment of auditors, reviewing the half yvear and annual financial
results, considenng matters raised by the auditors and overseeing the nsk monitonng and intemal control system operated

by the Group A report by the Audit Committee Is set out on page 45
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Corporate govermance

Relations with shareholders

The Company has atways recognised the importance of clear communications with shareholders and has encouraged

regular dialogue with Institutional and other sharsholders The Company holds mestings with, and presents to, its existing
shareholders and potential new shareholders to discuss strategic and other issues In addtion, duningthe year, the executive
and non-executve Directors have met with and spoken to shareholders, responding to ther questions ranging from the level

of disclosure to the performance of the Company Care 1s taken to ensure that inside Information which has not already been
made avatable to all shareholders 1s only released through proper channels Dunng the course of the year, shareholders are kept
informed of the progress of the Company through the announcement of financial results and other news released through the
London Stock Exchange, other news services and the Company’s website The pnncipal means of commurnication with private
shareholders are through the Annuzal Report, the Half Year Report, Intenm Managerment Staterments, the AGM and other
shareholder meetings The AGM Notice and related papers are posted to shareholders at least 21 days before the date of the
AGM to ensure that shareholders have sufficient tme in which to consider the tems of business The AGM prowides the Board
with an opporturnity to communicate with, and answer questions from, private and institutional shareholders Separate
resolutions at the AGM are proposed on each issue so that they can be gven proper consideration The Company counts all
proxy votes and will indicate at the Annual General Mesting the level of proxies lodged on each resolution where such resolution
has been dealt with by a show of hands

Accountahility and audit

Intermal control

The Board recognises that it 1s respensible for the Group's system of intemnal control and for reviewang its effectiveness

The system is designed to manage, rather than elminate, the nsk of fallure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance aganst matenal misstatement or loss There 1s an ongoing process, established in
accordance with the Turnbull Guidance 2005, for identfying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks faced by the Group
which has been in place dunng the year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts As part
of this process the Board cames out an annual review of significant business nsks, considenng the scope and effectiveness

of the Group's systemn of nternal control This Involves the dentrfication of nsks specific to the areas of property, finarnce and
external markets which impact on its objectives, together with the conitrols and reporting procedures designed to mitigate those
nsks These are reviewed, adopted and, If appropnate, updated dunng the year These include business nsks, financial controls
and the regulatory environment

Going concemn
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foresesable future For this reason, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ remuneration report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial staterents for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or lass of the Group for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, the Directors are required to

- select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financiat statements, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concerm basis unless 1t 1s INnappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The Directors are responstble for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the Company and the Group and enable

them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ remuneration report comply with the Comparves Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Comparny and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
Imegulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the Company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial staterents may differ from legislation n other junsdichions

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are set out on page 32 to 33 confirm that, to the best of ther knowledge

- the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, gve atrue
and farr view of the assets, labiities, financial position and profit of the Group, and

— the Business review contaned in the Annual Report includes a far review of the development and performance of ihe business

and the posrtion of the Group, together with a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that it faces
By order of the Board

Salmaan Hasan
Chief Executive

21 September 2010
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The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’), 1s established under termss of reference approved bythe Board The Committee’s
terms of reference are kept under review and updated when appropnate

Membership

Dunng the financial year, the following Directors served on the Committee
John Matthews (Committee Chairman)

Danel Kitchen {from 4 May 2010)

Martin Pexton {from 5 March 2010)

Olver Whitehead

Meetings and advice

The Committee met three times dunng the year and in the performance of its duties sought assistance from an external adviser,
Hewitt New Bndge Street, in relation to the Executive Incentve Plan The Deputy Company Secretary has provided administrative
support to the Committee

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy 1s designed to motivate, reward and retain executive Directors of the highest calibre in a way which

1S consistent with their contnbution to the success of the Company, while aligning their rewards and incentives directly with

the performance and growth of the Company The pay and employment conditions of all employees are considered by the
Committee at s meetings when determining the Directors’ remuneration The Commuittee considers annual performance
bonuses and iong-term share based incentives to be the maost effective mechanisms of aigning the interests of the executve
Directors with shareholders The Committee continues to monitor remuneration policy and will consulttwith major shareholders
and representative bodies regarding any proposed changes to long-termincentve schemes Any changes that are made

to annual performance bonus arangements will be disclosed to shareholders in future Remuneration reports

The remuneration packages currently compnse

Basic salanes and benefits

Basic salanes and benefits are reviewed by the Committee having regard to a number of factors, including the responsibility

and performance of the indmvdual and competive market practice Benefits to each Director pnneipally nclude the prowvision of
acompany car, medical Insurance and Iife assurance cover Inaddition, contnbutions to a defined contnbution pension scheme,
based so¢lely on basic salary, were made or have been accrued in respect of all executive Directors

Annual performance bonuses
The Company’s policy 1s to award perforrmance bonuses primarnly based upon the achievement of corporate objectives

The Committee awarded cash bonuses for the financial vear equivalent to 100 per cent of Directors’ basic salanes, having taken
nto consideration the considerable business achievernents made by the executve Directors in a very challenging economic
environment In particular, the Committee took into account the significant and comprehensive refinancang of the Group’s bank
loans, the leasing at The St Botolph Bulding to Clyde & Co, the achievement of construction milestones at The Walbrook
Buildng, The St Botolph Building and Lancaster Gate, and the pre-sales and pnces achieved to date at Lancaster Gate

The Committee has reviewed the framework for awarding annual performance bonuses to executive Directors |t agreed that,
for the year ending 30 June 2011, executive Directors could earn cash bonuses of up to 75 per cent of annual basic salary,
based on the achievement of targets which would include leasing, sales and financing milestones relating to the business

An award of up to 150 per cent of annual salary could be achieved If those pre-agreed targets are exceeded

Long-term share based incentives

Awards of share based Incentives are considered by the Committee annually The Company has ceased granting options
under the Company's Executive Share Option Schemes and currently only operates the 2005 Executve Incentrve Plan ('EIP")
and the All Employee Savings Related Share Option Scheme (‘Sharesave Scheme’)

The level of award under the EIP would normally be capped at no more than 100 per cent of salary in performance shares
and there 1s no Intention to provide further matching performance share awards
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Directors’ remuneration
Salary and fees Borus Other benefits Total Pensions
Year Year Year Year Year Year Yaar Year Year Year
ended ended ended ended ended ended ended endad ended ended
30 June 20.June 30 Juno 30 e 30.June 30June 30 June 30.une 30 June 30 Juna
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executives
Salmaan Hasan 441 441 441 - 21 26 903 487 44 44
van Ezekeel 265 265 265 - 14 23 544 288 53 53
Tim Gamham 265 265 265 - 21 27 551 292 26 26
971 971 o7 - 56 76 1,998 1,047 123 123
Non-executives
Olver Whitehead 130 130 - - - - 130 130 - -
Danel Kitchen? 8 - - - - - 8 - - -
John Matthews 50 50 - - - - 50 50 - -
Martin Pextor? 16 - - - - - 16 - - -
John McNeiPb - 34 - - - - - 34 - -
Clive Richards? - 18 - - - - - 18 - -
Chnstopher Shendan® - 18 - - - - - 18 - -
204 250 - - - - 204 250 - —

1 Apponted as a Drector on 4 May 2010

2 Apponted as a Crector on 5 March 2010

3 Resgned as a Director on 4 March 2009

4 Resigned as a Director on 13 Novernber 2008

Directors’ interests

At 30 June 2010, the Directors’ interests, ncluding immediate family interests, in the share capital of the Company
were as follows

Ordinary

Ordnary

ghares shares

30.Juna 2010 30.Jurna 2009

Olver Whitehead 314,573 314,673
Salmaan Hasan 477,142 477,142
an Ezekiel 120,831 120,831
Tim Garmham 2,414 2414
Danie! Kitchen - -
John Matthews 65,000 65,000

Martin Pexton -
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Employee share incentives

The Group operates two types of share plans the EIP and the Sharesave Scheme Durnng the year, no conditicnal awards
have been granted under the EIP and no options were granted pursuant to the Sharesave Scheme None of the terms of the
EIP or the Sharesave Scheme were vared dunng the year

2005 Executive Incentive Plan

Participation in the EiP 1s available to executive Directors and senior employees of the Company and tssubsidianes The EIP
was adopted in November 2005 and compnses two parts The first part provides for the Company to grant participants a
conditional nght {or an option with a norminal value exercise pnce) to acquire ‘Matching Performance Shares' over a number

of shares in the Company Iinked to the number of shares purchased by the participant from his or her annual bonus The second
part allows the Company to grant participants a conditional nght to acquire ‘Performance Shares’ (or an option with a nominal
value exercise price) which s not Inked to the co-nvestment in Company shares by the participant  The vesting of awards

of Matching Performance Shares or conditional nghts to acquire Performance Shares 1s subject to a three year condion which
will compare the Company’s total shareholder return { TSR’) performance with the TSR of the comparnies in the Comparator
Group as follows

Propotion of Matehing Performance Shares

Rarking of the Compary within Comparator Group or Performance Shares which vest
Within the top 20 per cent of companies 100 per cent

Straight-line basis between
Between the median company and the top 20 per cent of companies 25 per cent and 100 per cent
Median company 25 percent
Below median company Nil

The TSR measure was chosen as it 1s considered to be well understood by the business and is a transparent measure that acts
1o align the interests of the participants with the interests of the Company’s shareholders For awards made in 2007 and 2008,
the ‘Comparator Group' has compnsed companies in the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Index at the date of grant, excluding
agents The Committee considered this to be the Company’s closest and moest appropnate Comparator Group The FTSE
All-Share Real Estate Index was discontinued in December 2009 and for any future awards, the Committee will endeavour to
include a list of companies that were included in that Index in the Comparator Group and exclude companies in the FTSE 350
Real Estate Index which are not comparable owing to sze orbusiness The continued inclusion of companies classified as Real
Estate Investment Trusts in future awards will also be taken into consideration The Committee will decide howy to treat any
companies that leave the Comparator Group, due to takeover for example, based on the circumstances prevailing at the tme
In addrtion, the Committee will have the power to scale back the vesting of awards where, In its reasonable opinion, there has not
been satisfactory financial performance of the Company over the performance penod

As at 30 June 2010 the Company’s TSR performance relative to its peer Group indicated that

Ranking of the Company Proportion of Matcheng or
Avard within Comparator Group Parformance Shares which would vest
2007 Below median cormpary MNil
2008 Top 20 per cent of companes 100 per cent

No awards were made under the EIP in 2009

All Employee Sharesave Scheme

The Company has operated an H M Revenue and Customs approved Sharesave Scheme since 2002 All eligible employees
of participating Group companies may participate in the Sharesave Scheme The Scheme offers employees the opportunity

o save up to a maximum of £250 each month with a selected bank or bulding socety over a three or five year penod At the
end of three or five years, employees may use ther savings, plus a tax-free bonus to exercise an option to buy a certain number
of shares in the Company at up to a 20 per cent discount to the share pnce shortly before they started saving Options granted
under the Sharesave Scheme are not subject to performance conditions
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Share options and EIP awards
At 30 June 2010, options and awards granted to Directors over the following number of shares n the Company remained
outstanding
Salmaan Hasan
Al At Exertise prce/ Exercisa
1 July Granted Exerased Lapsed 30 June market value perod/date
Scheme 2009 Ty year dunng year durng year* 2010  ondate of award of vesting
EIP 218,802 - - 218,892 - nlY38375p Nov 2009
EIP 344,195 - - - 344,195 nI/256 25p Sep 2010
Er 1,833,333 - - - 1,633,333 nil/2700p Oct 2011
van Ezekel
At At Exercise prce/ Exercise
1 July Granted Exercised Lapsed 30 June market value penodidate
Scheme 2009 currg year dunng year durng year 2010 on catecfaward of vesting
Sharesave 29,869 - - - 29,869 32i4p Dec 2011 -May 2012
ElP 131,335 - - 131,335 - n/38375p Nov 2009
EP 206,517 - - - 206,517 niI¥25625p Sep 2010
EIP 980,000 - - - 980,000 nil/27 00p Oct 2011
Tim Garnham
At At Exercsaprnce/ Exertisa
1 July Granted Exeroised Lapsed 30 June market value penoad/date
Scheme 2009 qurng year dunng year durng year* 2010 ondatectaward of vesting
Sharesave 29,869 - - - 29,869 32 14p Dec 2011 —May 2012
EIP 131,335 - - 131,335 - ni/38375p Nov 2009
EP 206,517 - - - 206,517 nil/256 25p Sep 2010
EIP 980,000 - - - 980,000 nil/27Q0p Oct 2011
Shar 2001 Sh, Scheme

Options granted under the Sharesave Schame are not subect 10 performance conaions

EIP- 2005 Executiva Incentive Plan

The Total Shareholder Retum has to bewithen the top 20 per cent of comparator cormparyes for al share awards 1o vest Share awards vest at progressvely lower levels as the level
of Total Shareholder Retum falls to a madian level at which portt a quarter of options vest Awards lapse for below median performance

*All awards whch lapsed durning the year represent awards which did not vest due to the Comgany'’s comparatve TSA padomance

No consideration was paid for the grant of any option or award

The mud-market pnee of the Company’s shares on the London Stock Exchange at 30 June 2010 was 109 pence per share
Dunng the year the share pnce ranged from 13 pence to 124 pence

Share ownership guidelines

Executive Directors are encouraged to buld and retain an interest in the Company's shares to the value of 100 per cent of therr
basic salary (150 per cent for the Chief Executive)
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Non-executive remuneration

The non-executive Directors do not have service contracts Therr appomtments are subject to the provisions of the Articles of
Association and the Combined Code dealing with appontrment and retrement by rotation Non-executive Directors receve a fee
for their services to the Company, including in connection with Board and Board Committes meetings The non-executve
Oirectors do not receve any pension or other benefits from the Company (such as bonuses, options or awards under any share
incentive arrangements)

QOlver Whitehead joined the Board on 19 July 2006 for an intiial three year term under an agreement also dated 19 July 2006
With effect from 19 July 2009, he was reappointed by the Board on the sarme conditions of service for a further term of three
years Inaccordance with the Articles of Asscciation, he submitted himseff for re-election at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company held on 4 December 2009, but the resolution for his re-election was not approved by the shareholders The Board
announced its decision to reappaint Oliver Whitehead as Charman following the meeting, taking into account the near unanmous
support from independent voting shareholders and to seek to ensure that Minerva had a strong, independent Chairman acting
in the interests of all shareholders At the subsequent General Meeting of the Company held on 5 March 2010, his re-election

as a Director was approved by the shareholders

John Matthews was appointed to the Board under an agreement dated 7 June 2007, commencing on 17 September 2007
for an inibal term of three years which was extended by a further three years with effect from 17 September 2010

The agreerments with Olver Whitehead and John Matthews are terminable by either party on three months’ notice

Martin Pexton was appointed to the Board under an agreement dated 25 January 2010, commencing on S March 2010
and Daniel Kitchen was appainted to the Board under an agreement dated 20 Apnl 2010, commencing on 4 May 2010,
bath of which were for an inhial penod of three years and terminable by either party on three menths' notce

Service contracts, contracts of significance and notice periods

The service contract of Salmaan Hasan 1s dated 4 July 2005 and his appointment also commenced onthat date The contract
has no fixed term and is terminable by erther party on 12 months’ notice The semvice contract of lvan Ezekiel 1s dated 24 August
2005 The contract has no fixed term and s terminable by the Company on 12 months' notice and by ivan Ezekiel on six months'
notice lvan Ezekiel's sernce contract provicies that, in the event that his employment 1s terminated without notice (other than for
cause), the Company will make a lump sum payment to him equivalent to 95 per cent of the salary and benefits he would have
receved had he remained in employment dunng the notice penod in full and final settlement of any clams he may have The
service contract of Tim Garnham is dated 16 January 2006 His appointment commenced on 30 August 2005 The contract
has no fixed term and is temminable by the Company on 12 months’ notice and by Tim Garnham on sxmonths’ notice

No Director has contractual nghts for compensation on early termination beycnd payment of the contractual notice penod

The Remuneratton Committee reviews the service contracts penodically Other than set out above, there were no other persons
who served as an executive Director of the Company dunng the year ended 30 June 2010 Apart from share options, conditional
share awards and serice contracts or non-executive Director letters of appointment, no contract subsisted dunng or at the

end of the financial year mwhich a Director 1s or was matenally interested and which s or was significant in relation to the Group's
business dunng the penod under review
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The total shareholder retum to the members of the Company, calculated by reference to share pnce growth plus reinvested
dmdends, relative to the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index for each of the last five financial years, 15 llustrated by the following chart

graphic removed

The Committee considers the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index to be the most appropnate broad market equity index available

for dustrating the Company's performance

Audttable information

The Remuneration report consists of non-auditable mformation with the exception of the sections entrtled Directors’ remuneration
and the details of share options held by Directors set out in the tables and accompanying notes on pages 39 and 41

Approval

An ordinary resolubicn will be proposed for the approval of this report at the Annual General Mesting of the Company

For and on behalf of the Board

John Matthews
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

21 September 2010
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Nominations Committee report
The Nominations Committee

The Nominations Committes {the ‘Committee’} s established under terms of reference approved by the Board The Committes’s
terms of reference are kept under review and updated when appropnate

Membership

Throughout the financial year, the following Directors served on the Committee
Qlrver Whitehead {Committee Charmany

Danel Kitchen (from 4 May 2010)

John Matthews

Martin Pexion {from 5 March 2010}

Meetings

The Committee met three tirmes dunng the year ended 30 June 2010

Main activities of the Commitiee
The role of the Committee ncludes

- monitonng the balance of skills, knowledge and exgenencea on the Board,
- using executve search specialists, assisting the Beard with the recnutment of Directors, and
- recommending to the Board the Directors proposed for re-glection at the Annual General Meeting of the Compary

Following a thorough selection process, the Committee recommended the appointment of Danief Kitchen and Martin Pexton

The Committee meets penodically when required When approprnate, the executive Directors may be invited by the Committee
to its meetings The Commuttee 1s able to consider items of business without other pariies being present

The Committee has access to such nformation and advice both from within the Group and externally, at the cost of the
Company, as it deems necessary This may include the appointment of external consultants, where appropnate

For and on behalf of the Board

——

Oliver Whitehead
Chaiman of the Nominations Committee

21 Septermber 2010




45

Ninena pic Cverview
Annualeport and accounts  Govemnance
2010 Fnancial statements
Audit Committee report
The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee {the ‘Committee’} 1s established under terms of reference approved by the Board The Committee’s terms
of reference are kept under review and updated when appropnate

Membership
Throughout the financial year, the following Directors served on the Committee

John Matthews (Committee Charrman)
Daniel Kitchen {from 4 May 2010}
Martin Pexton {from 5 March 2010)
Olever Whitehead

John Matthews, s a Fellow of the Insttute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales Martin Pexton has significant
financial expenencs ganed from his directorships within pnvate equity and the real estate sectors Daniel Kitchen s a Fellow

of the Institute of Chartered Certified Accountants and has a breadth of financial expenence ganed from external appointments
as a Finance Director and Chuef Executive withun the property nvestment and developrment sector Therefore, the majonty of
Committee members are considered to have recent and relevant financial expenence

Meetings

The Committee met three tmes N the year ended 30 June 2010 When approprate, the Finance Director, other Directors and
the audrtors were Invited by the Committee to attend s meetings The Committes is able to consider tems of business without
other parties baing prasent

Main activities of the Committee
The role of the Committee includes

- detalled reviews of published annual and half year financial information including consideration of the appropnateness of
accounting policies and matenal assumptions and estmates adopted by management,

- mesting with the auditors, in advance of the annual audit, to consider and discuss the nature and scope of the audit,

- anannual review of the need for an internal audit function, which confirmed that t was not necessary gven the size and
complexity of the Company,

- monitorng the Independence of the auditors,

- meebing with the auditors without executive Directors present,

- reviewing and updating the formal policy for the auditors to supply non-audit services,

- considerng the Companys report on nternal controf and nsk managerment, in compiiance with the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance, and

- reviewing and reaffirming the Gomparny’s whistleblowing arrangements

All of these activities were camed out by the Committee dunng the year with the exception of the review of Internal control and
risk management which was camed out by the Board

Audrtors

The Commitiee reviews the level of fees and type of non-audit work camed out by the auditors Dunng the year no work was
provided by PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP other than the audit and work on the review of the half year results In addition, the
Committee further safeguards the auditors’ objectivity by reviewing the measures they take to maintain therr ndependence and
manage any conflicts of Interest

PnoewaterhouseCoopers LLP have beenthe Company's auditors since 1997 The auditors are required to rotate the audr
partners responsible for the Group and subsidiary audits every five years and the current lead audit partner has been in place for
fouryears There are no contractual cbligations restncting the Company’s choice of auditor The Audit Committee considers that
the relaticnship with the audrtors 1s working well and remains satisfied with therr effectiveness Accordingly, it has not considered
it necessary to date to require the firm to tender for the audit work

The Committee has recommended 1o the Board that the auditors be reappointed
Far and on behalf of the Board

John Matthews
Chaiman of the Audit Committee

21 September 2010
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present ther report and the audted consolidated financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2010

Pnncipal activities and review of the business

The pnncipal actvities of the Group and its subsidianes are that of Investment, development, sale and management of real estate
inthe UK A review of the business of the Group 1s prowided in the Chaimman's staterment on pages 1610 19 and the Business
review on pages 2010 31 The Business Review detadls the Group's strategy and includes an operational update, including the
progress of the Group’s prejects, a financial review, including hedging and nsk management, as wellas other information
regarding the Group's actvities and position at the year end

Results and dividends

The financial statements deal with the results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2010 and are shown on page 52
No dvidend I1s declared or payable in respect of the year ended 30 June 2010 (2009 £nil)

Directors
The Directors of the Company who served dunng the year and up to the date of the financial statements are as fcllows

Olwver Whitehead

Salmaan Hasan

van Ezekael

Tim Garmham

Daniel Kitchen (apponted 4 May 2010)
John Matthews

Martin Pexton {appointed 5 March 2010}

Biographical detalls of the current Directors of the Company are set out on pages 32 to 33 The Articles of Association deal with
the powers, appointment and replacement of Directors

The interests of the Directors and therr immediate farmilies in the shares of the Company and in options over shares of the
Company as at 30 June 2010 are as set out In the Remuneration report There has been ne change iInthe beneficial and
non-beneficial shareholdings of the Directors between 30 June 2010 and the date of this report

Re-appointment of Directors

John Matthews, Martin Pexton and Daniel Kitchen will retire from office at the AGM in accordance with the Articles of Association
and are each willing and eligible to stand for re-election Resolutions will be proposed at the AGM to re-glect them

Directors’ qualifying third party ndemnity provisions

Under the provisions of ts Articles of Association, the Company has granted an indemnity to ts Directors against lability n
respect of proceedings brought by third parties, subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006 Such qualifving
third party indernnity prowsion was in force throughout the financial year and remans in force on the date of approval of the
Report of the Dwectors

Substantial shareholdings
The Company has been notified of the following substantial interasts in the share capital of the Company asat 21 September 2010

Shares Per cent
Kifin Limited 47,627,804 2955
Morgan Stanley (Institutional Group) 9,847,330 611
Standard Life Investments (Institutional Group) 7,887,854 489
Credit Suisse Secunties (Europe) Limited 6,437,680 399
Barclays Private Bank (U K) 5,726,174 355
JPMorgan Asset Management U K Limited 5,779,999 359
Blackrock Advisors (Insttutional Group) 5,200,269 323

SISU Capital Limited 5,136,085 319
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Annual General Meeting

The business to be considered at the Annual General Meeting of the Company s set out separately in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting

Combined Code on Corporate Governance

A staterment on corporate governance 1s set out on pages 34 to 36

Heaith and safety

The Group is committed to achieving a high standard of health and safety and regularly reviews iis policies and practices to
ensure that appropnate standards are mantamned

Suppliers

The Group's pelicy concerming the payment of its trade creditars and other suppliers 1s to set the terms of payment with major
suppliers when agreeing the terrs of each transaction, ensure that suppliers are made aware of the terms of payment by
nclusion of the relevant terms in their contracts and pay all suppliers in accordance with its contractual and other legal
abligations At the year end the Group had an average of 19 days (2009 18 days) purchases cutstanding

Donations

Dunng the year the Group mads no chantable donations (2009 £100) No poltical donations were made dunng the year
(2009 Enil}

Post balance sheet events

The post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 32 on page 83

Share capital

The Company has a single class of share capital which is dvided into ordinary shares of 25 pence each Details of the Compary’s
share capital are set ocut nnote 25 on page 80 The nghts and obhgations that are attached to the shares are set outinthe
Company’s Articles of Association unless specified by law or regulation There are no restrictions on voting nghts or the transfer
of shares other than as specified by the Articles of Association, law or regulation

Control of the Company

The Company I1s party to a number of loan facilities, certain of which contain change of control prowisions if a change of control
waere to occur, the ability of the Company to operate could depend upon the purchaser negotiating a warver of those provisions
from the relevant lenders or obtaining altemative finance Other than the above arangements, the Company i1s not party to any
other signficant agreements that would take effect, alter or terminate following a change in control of the Company There are
no agreements between the Company and the Directors or employess providing for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs because of a change of control The Company’s share schemes contain provisions which take effect
In the event of a change in control of the Company No special nghts are provided to any other shareholders with regard to the
controt of the Company

Disclosure of Information to auditors

So far as the Directors are aware, there i1s no relevant audit information of which the auditors areunaware, and each Director has
taken all the steps that he cught to have taken as a Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and
to estabhsh that the auditors are aware of that information

Independent auditors

A resolution to reappoint PncewaternouseCoopers LLP as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the AGM

By order of the Board

lvan Ezekiel
Secretary
21 September 2010
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Corporate responsibility

Corporate responsibity 1s part of Minerva's business culture Our commitments are set out iIn our Comorate Responsibiity Policy,
which reflects our approach to thinking about sustainability In a holistic manner, encompassing envionmental, social and
eCoNoMmIC ISSUes

Our Corporate Responsibility Report for 2010 summanses how we have managed the sustanabilty aspects of our business
from July 2009 to June 2010, and outines our new intiatives and targets Over the past year, we have continued to review
and manage the sustanabilty impacts of our property investments and developments and identrfy areas for improvement

A summary of the key Intiatives this year is provided below

Sustamnable developments

The Group pndes ttseff on the high quality design of its developments In recent years it has become clear that a key aspect
of quality 1s how the development performs in sustainability terms A senes of additional sustanability performance indicators
have been developed, which can be applied across our development portfolio These will help us measure and monitor the
sustainability performance of both the design and the construction phases of our developrments

We also use tools such as BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method), EcoHomes and,
where appropnate for future residential developments, The Code for Sustainable Homes to assess the performance of our
developments in terms of sustanability Investors and tenants are increasingly demanding that buildings are environmentally
sound, especially n terms of energy efficiency and carbon dioxide emissions  The environmental performance of our portfolio 1s
therefore an iImpertant consideration A high BREEAM rating can be taken as a strong indication of the likely emaronmental
performance of a buldng, as it may be stipulated by investors or tenants as a requirement

We always stnve to achieve a good sustainability rating under the appropnate scheme for each of our developments, within the
constraints of the site Our current and predicted performance 1S summansed in the table below

Development Assessment ratng
The Walbrook Building BREEAM 'Excellent’
The St Botolph Building BREEAM ‘Very Good’
Lancaster Gate (isted bulding) Predicted EcoHomes 'Pass’
Odeon Kensington Predicted EcoHomes ‘Very Good’
Sustainable procurement

Qur Sustainable Procurement Policy (' Policy’) was developed in recognition that significant sustainabilty impacts — both positive
and negative — can anse from our supply chain activities The Policy therefore sets out in greater detal our commitments to
improve the environmental, social and ethical impacts of our supplier base by procunng more sustainable goods and services
To help mplement the Policy, this year we plan to implerment procedures to prowide structured gurdance for our employees on
the sustanability issues that should be considered dunng supplier selection and ongoing supplier management and engagemernt

Sustainable management

We continue to look for ways to improve the environmental performance of our managed assets Tenant engagement on
sustainability 1ssues is a pnonty for us We seek to engage with our tenants on 1ssues such as energy and water use reduction,
waste management and promotion of sustainable transport, working together to iImprove the environmental performance of
our bulldings
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Investing tn communities

The Group Is proactive In community engagement through all stages of our business activities, Including design, planning,
construction and occupation This 1s demonstrated by our proactive consultation dunng the planrming process Commurity
engagement Is not seen as an optional add-on but as a business-critical aspect of managing our developments effectively
The process of proactive consultation vanes from project to project, depending on the location and the nature of the key
stakeholders What all of our developments have in commoen is a desire to go beyond the minmum statutory consultation
and to engage the local community in a meaningful dialogue about how the development can meet their needs

Shareholder dialogue

We recognise the Importance of constructive dialogue with current and potential investors andthe asset managers who actin
thewr interest We respond te enquines relating to Socially Responsible Investment and our appmach to Corporate Responsibilty
Conbinual mprovement

In qur 2008/09 Corporate Responsibiity Report, the Group set itself a senes of challenges to be tackled as “Next Steps’
towards improving the sustanability of our business actvities In 2009/2010, we have continued to respond successfully to
many of these challenges and cur progress is descnbed in this year’s report We recogrise that working towards sustanablity
15 a process of continual mproverment

Graphc removed
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Minerva plc

We have audited the financial statements of Minerva plc for the year ended 30 June 2010 which compnse the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consclidated and Parent Company Staterments of Financial Positon, the Consolidated Statement of
Cornprehensive Income, the Consclidated and Parent Company Cash Flow Staterents, the Consoldated and Parent
Company Statements of Changes in Equity, the Accounting Policies and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation s applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the parent company financial staterments, as appled in accomance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 37, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1S to audit
the financial staterments in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Audting (UK and Ireland)

Those standards require us to comply with the Audriting Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body In accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in gmng these opinions, accept or
assume responsibiity for any other purpase or to any other person to whom this report is shown or ntowhose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in witing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaning evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraudor ermor This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s circumstances and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by

the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

— the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 June
2010 and of the Group’s profit and Group's and Parent Company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

— the Group financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,

— the Parent Company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Compantes Act 2006, and

— the financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Openion an other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion:

- the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 20086,

— the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent
with the financial statements, and

- the information given In the Corporate Governance report set out on pages 34 ta 36 with respect tointernal control and nsk
management systems and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial staternents
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or

- the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Rermuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and retumns, or

- certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

- we have not recenved all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or

- acorporate governance statement has not been prepared by the Parent Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

- the Directors’ statement, set out on page 36, In relation o going concern, and
- the parts of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Company's complance with the nine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review

Q\\QX)MJ\ AN

Jonathan Hook

Senor Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

21 September 2010
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Consolidated income statement

Yaar to Year to

30June2010  30.une2009
For the year ended 30 Ane 2010 Nota £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 12,458 13,532
Property outgoings 3 {5,511} (8,374)
Net property income 3 6,947 5158
Administrative expenses N (7,736) {6,906
Exceptional administrative expenses 2 (2,391) -
Total administrative expenses (10,127) {6,906)
Cther income 158 319
Profit/(loss) on sale of investment properties 12 3,804 (92)
Profit on sale of owner occupied property 13 3,012 -
Impairment of cwner occupied property 13 - (2,750}
Gain on/impairnent of) other financial assets 15 3 {13)
Movement on revaluation of nvestment properties 12 107,934 (281,857)
Operating profit/Joss) 4+ 111,81 (286,141)
Finance costs 7 {45,632) {10,712
Finance income 8 2,905 7,619
Net finance costs {42,727 (3,093}
Profit/loss) before taxation 69,094 {289.234)
Taxation credit 9 - 2,178
Profit/loss) for the year 69,004 (287,056)
Attnbutable to
Equity shareholders 69,114 (287,033)
Minonty nterest (20) {23}
Profit/{loss) for the year 69,004 (287,056}
Earnings/floss) per share
—Basic 11 42.9p (178 1p)
- Diluted 11 41.4p (178 1p)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Yearto Year to

30June2010  30.hne2000
Fer the year ended 30.June 2010 Note £000 £000
Profit/(loss) for the year 69,094 (287,056)
Other comprehensive Income
Net loss on cash flow hedges 2| (13875 68711
Amortisation of cash flow hedge reserve 7 6,299 ' L -
Tax relating to net loss on cash flow hedges 23 - 4,280
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {7,576} (64,431}
Total comprehensive Income/{oss) for the year 61,518 (351,487)
Attnbutable to
Equrty shareholders 61,288 (351,065)
Minorty interest 230 (422)

Total comprehensive Income/{loss) for the year 61,518 (351,487)
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Company number 2649607
As at As at
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
As at 30 Jure 2010 Note 2000 2000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment properties 12 726,215 502,395
Property, plant and equipment 13 114 6,270
Denvative financial Instruments 20 - 419
Other financial assets 15 47 44
726,376 509,128
Current assets
Trading properbes 16 228,647 181,597
Trade and other recevables 17 26,726 28,579
Cash and cash equivalents 18 54,996 82,306
310,369 292,482
Total assets 1,036,745 801,610
Labilties
Current labilities
Trade and other payables 19 {68,672) (51,618)
Denvative financial instruments 20 (8,776) (1.124}
Bormrowings 20 (1,871) (21,760)
Frovisions for ather labilities and charges 24 {4,111) 4,132)

(83430)  (78634)

Non-current llabilities

Other payables 19 - {15,600)
Borrowings 0 (B857,879) (699,116)
Denvative financial nstruments 20 {79,875) (52,934)
Deferred tax 23 - -
Prowvisions for other labilities and charges 24 (1,372) (1,499)
{939,126) (769,149)
Total labilites {1,022,556) (847,783)
Net assets/(labilites) 14,189 (46173)
Equity
Called up share capital 25 40,204 40,294
Share premium account 198,422 198,422
Other reserves {20,778) (11,232
Retained defictt (203,513) (273,910
Total shareholders’ equity/{defici) 14,425 (46,426)
Minonty Interest (236) 253
Total equity/{deficit) 14,189 (46,173)
Net asset/{iabiity) per share
- Basic 26 8.9p {28 8p)
- Diluted EPRA 26 131.8p 47 1p

The financial staiements on pages 52 to 83 were approved by the Board of Directors for issue on 21 September 2010

and were signed onts behaZp

SHasan IH Ezek;el
Director Director
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Parent Company statement of financial position

Company number 2649607
Asat Asal
30 June 2040 30 June 2009
As at 30 June 2010 Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 14 36,158 44,020
36,158 44,020
Cumrent assets
Trade and other recevables 17 53,814 79,861
Cash and cash equivalents 299 3,340
54,113 83,201
Total assets 90,271 127,221
Labilites
Current labilities
Trade and other payables 19 {1,182) (631)
Total iabiliies {1,182) (B31)
Net assets 89,089 126,590
Equity
Called up share capital 25 40,294 40,294
Share premium account 198,422 198,422
Other reserves 20,499 19,216
Retaned defict (170,126) (131,342)
Total equity 89,089 126,580

The financial statements on pages 52 to 83 were approved by the Board of Directors for issueon 21 September 2010
and were signed on its behalf by

S Hasan 1 H Ezekiel
Director Director
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Statements of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Attnbutable t0 equity shareholders

Shara Share Other Retaned Minority Total
captal premum reserves  earnings/{deficr) Total merest  equity/(defict)
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 July 2008 40,294 198,422 52,800 11,023 302,539 671 303,210
Laoss forthe year - - - (287,033 (287,033 (23) (287,056
Other comprehensive loss - ~ (64,032) - 64,032 (399) (64,431
Total comprehensive loss - - 64,032) (287,033) (351,065 (422) (351,487)
Contnbution from minonty interest - - - - - 4 4
Share based payment - - - 2,100 2,100 - 2,100
1 July 2009 40,294 198,422 {11,232) (273,910} (46,426 253 (46,173)
Profit for the year - - - 69,114 69,114 (20 £9,004
Other comprehensive 10ss - - (7,826) - (7.826) 250 {7,576)
Total comprehensve INncome - - (7,826) 63,114 61,288 230 61,518
Share based payment - - - 1,283 1,283 - 1,283
Acquisition of minonty interest - - (1,720) - (1,720) {719) (2,439)
30June 2010 40,294 198,422 (20,778) (203,513) 14,425 {236) 14,189
Attrioutable to equty sharehokders
Share Share Other Retaned Total
capial premim reserves earmnng/(defict) equity
Company £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 July 2008 40,294 198,422 17,116 36,692 292,524
Share based payrment - - 2,100 - 2,100
Loss for the year - - - (188,034) (168,034
1 July 2009 40,294 198,422 19,218 (131,342) 126,590
Share based payrment - - 1,283 - 1,283
Loss forthe year - - - (38,784) (38,784)
30 June 2010 40,294 198,322 20,499 {170,126} 89,089
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year to Year to

30June 2010  30June2009
For the year endled 30 June 2010 Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operations 31 (34,472} (31,156)
Interest recenved 2,000 5,301
Interest paid (12,053} (14,499)
Cash flows from operating actvties (44,525} {40,354
Investing actmvities
Addtions to investment properties {121,935) (162,922)
Additions to property, plant and equipment {48) (13}
Acquisttion of minonty interest (2,439) -
Receipts from sale of nvestment properties 31,316 1,956
Receipts from sale of owner occupied property 8,069 -
Receipts from sale of property, plant and equipment - 186
Recepts from sale of other financial assets - 173
Cash flows from investing activities (84,037} {160,620}
Financing activties
New locans o 131,858 187,540
Issue costs of loans (933) (940)
Equity contrbution from minonty interest - 4
Repayment of loans (28,617) -T20,762)
Cost of early loan repayment (1,056) -
Cash flows from financing actvities 101,252 185,842
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (27,310) (35,132)
Cash and cash equivalents at begnning of year 82,306 117,438
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 54,956 82,306
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Parent Company cash flow statement

Year to Yaarto
30June 2010  30June2009
For the year ended 30 June 2010 Nata £000 £000
Cash flows from operations 3 {3,132) (3.522)
Interest recevect a1 194
Cash fiows from operating actvities {3,041) (3,.328)
Net decrease in cash and cash equwvalents N L L (3,041) {3,328)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year N 3,340 6,668
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 299 3,340
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

Minerva plcis a limited labiity company incorporated and domicted in the United Kingdom The Group's financial statements
consolidate those of the Company and its subsidianes (‘the Group’) and equity account the Group’s interest in joint ventures

The Group and Parent Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards ('iIFRS") as adopted by the European Union (‘EU")

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are mandatory for the first time for the financial year
ending 30 June 2010

- IFRS 8, ‘Cperating segments’

~ |AS 1 {rewised), ‘Presentation of financial statements’

- IAS 23 {revised), ‘Borrowing costs’

- IFRS 3 {revised), ‘Business combinations’

— |AS 27 (revised), ‘Consolidated and separate financial statements’

- Amendment to IFRS 1, 'First ime adoption of IFRS' and IAS 27 'Consolidated and separate financial statements’ on the Cost
of aninvestment n a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate

- Annual mprovements to IFRSs {2008)

- Amendment to LAS 32, ‘Financial ingtruments Presentation’, and IAS 1, ‘Presentation of financial statements’ on ‘Puttable
financial Instruments and obligations ansing on lquidation’

- Amendment to IFRS 2, 'Share based payments’ on ‘Vesting conditions and cancellations’

— Amendment to IFRS 7, 'Financial nstruments Disclosures’

— Amendment to IAS 39, ‘Financial nstruments Recognition and measurement’ on Eligible hedged tems

- IFRIC 15, ‘Agreements for construction of real estate’

On adoption of 1AS 1, (revised), the Group has elected to present an Income statement and a separate Statement of
comprehensive Income Inrespect of all other new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations, these have not
had a significant impact on the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2010

The following standards and interpretations, although effective for the year ending 30 June 2010 do not have animpact or are
not relevant for the Group

— IFRS 1 (revised) ‘First tme adoption’

— IFRIC 12,'Service concession arrangements’

— IFRIC 13, 'Customer loyalty programmes relating to IAS 18, Revenue’

- IFRIC 14, 'IAS 19 - The imit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and ther nteraction’
— IFRIC 186, ‘*Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’

- IFRIC 17, 'Distnbutions of non-cash assets to owners’

The following new standards, amendments to standards and intemratations have been issued, but are not effective for the year
ending 30 June 2010 and have not been adopted earty by the Group

— Annual improvements 2009

— Amendment to IFRS 2, ‘Share based payments — Group cash-settled share based payment transactions’
— Amendments to IFRS 1 for additional exemptions

- Amendments IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation on classiication of nghts 1ssues

Following an intial review 1t 1s not anticipated that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a matenal impact
on the financial statements in the penod of intial application
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the
financial staterments

Measurement convention

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed IFRS, IFRIC
interpratations, the Companes Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS, and the histoncal cost convention
as modiied by the Inclusion of investment properties, other financial assets and financial nstruments at fair value

Areas requinng the use of estimates and crtical jJudgement that may impact on the Group's earnings and financial position Include

~ valuation of Investment properties, where the Board has relied upon external valuations camed out by professionally qualified
valuers in accondance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,

— vaiuation of denvatwve financial instruments, where the Board has relied upon the valuation carned out by JC Rathbone
Associates Limited, finance nsk consultants,

— recognition of a share based payment charge, where the Board has relied upen actuanal eshimates produced by Lane Clark
& Peacock LLP,

— distinction between investment properties, trading properties and owner occupied property, where the Board considers
owner occupled property to be held for use in the supply of services and for administration purposes by the Group, and

— calculation of deferred tax, where iIndexation 1s used to reduce the provision for deferred tax on revaluation sumpluses

Other areas of judgement, nsk and uncertanty, which are relevant to an understanding of the financial results and posttion
of the Group, are referred to in the Business review

Basis of consolidation

The consoldated financial statements of the Group Include the financial results of subsidianes acquired dunng the year from the
effective date of acquisiion, beng the date on which the Group obtains control Business combinations are accounted for under
the acquisiion method Intra-group balances and any unrealised gains and losses ansing from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in prepanng the Group's consolidated financial statements Subsidianes are those entities controlled by the Group
Control exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and cperating policies of an entity

$0 as to obtan benefits from its actvites Subsidianes are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

A jont venture 1s an undertaking In which the Group has a long-term nterest and over which it exercises joint control, whereas
an associate Is an entity in which the Group has significant influence but not control over financial and operating policies

In accordance with IAS 31, the Group equity accounts for its share of net result after tax of joint ventures and associates,
together with its share of fair value adjustments, through the income statement and recognises its share of the net assets

of the joint ventures and associates in the consolidated statement of financial postion To the extent that fair value adjustments
are In respect of cash flow hedges, these movements are recogrised directly In equity

Investments in subsidianes

Investments 1n subsidianes are held in the Company statement of financial position at cost and reviewed annually for impairment
The acquistion and disposal of shares in subsidianes, while retaning control, 1s accounted for as transactions within equity
The dfference between the fair value of consideration and the movement ininterest N subsicdiary 15 recorded In other reserves

Revenue

Property revenue compnses rental Income from operating leases, service charge income and other amounts recevable from
tenants Rental ncome and lease incentives to tenants are recognised in the Income statement on a straght-tine basis over the
lease term

In respect of residential unit sales, revenue 1s recognised, being the fair value of consideration received orrecevable, when the
signficant nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the purchaser Non-refundable deposts are deferred until
the sale has been recognised or the deposit forferted by the purchaser

Otherincome compnses non-property revenue and other sundry amounts earned on an accruals basis
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1. Accounting policies
Property expenses

Refurbishment expendrture in respect of major works 1s capitalised Renovation and refurbishment expenditure of a revenue
nature 1s charged to the iIncome statement as incurred

Costs directly attnbutable to the amangement of a lease, which include letting and professional fees, are caprtalised and
amortised over the lease term

Foreign currency transactions

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are presented in UK Sterling, the functiona and presentational currency of
each company within the Group Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional curmency using the exchange
rates prevaling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resutiing from the settlerment of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and hiabilties, denorminated in foreign
cumencies, are recognised in the income statement

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are those significant tems of ncome or expenditure which the Group has disclosed separately because
of their quantum or Incidence so as to give a clearer understanding of the Group’s financial performance

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for long-term rental ncome and for capital appreciation and are measured intally at
cost, ncluding related transaction costs, and subsequently at fair value Changes inthe farr value of an investment property at the
staternent of financial position date and its carmmying amount pnor to re-measurement, are recorded n the income statement

Addttions to properties n the course of development or refurbishment include the cost of finance and directly attnbutable internal
and external costs iIncurred dunng the penod of development until practical completion

When the Group redevelops an existing investment property for continued use as an Investment property, the property remains
aninvestment property measured at farvalue and 1s not reclassified
Trading propertes

Trachng properties are properties held for sale and are iIncluded in the statement of financial postion at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Properties reclassified as trading properties are transferred at deemed cost, being the camying amount at the
date of reclassification
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting policies

Property transactions

Purchases and sales are recognised on exchange of contracts provided that, if the exchange is conditional, all matenal
conditions have been satisfied

Property, plant and equipment

This categery compnses motor vehicles and fixtures and fittings following the disposal of all owner occupied property in the year
These assets are stated at histoncal cost, or in the case of owner occupied property its canying value at the date of transfer,

less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment Owner occupied property Is depreciated over 50 years

and motor vehicles and fixtures and fittings are depreciated on a straight-ine basis over therr estimated usefut ives of between
three and five years

Impairment of non-financial assets

Anmpanment loss is recogrised for the amount by which the assets camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount

Leases - the Group as a lessor

Properties leased out under operating leases are Included in nvestment or trading properties, with lease income being
recognised over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis

Leases ~ the Group as alessee

Leases are classified according to the substance of the transaction A lease that transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee 15 classified as a finance lease Al other leases are classffied as operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the assat and the present value
of the minmum lease payments and amortised over the shorter of the lease term and useful econormiclife Each lease payment
15 allocated between the lability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the finance balance
outstanding The comesponding rental obkgations, net of finance charges, are included in current and non-current borrowings

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash in hand, deposits with banks and short-term liquid investments

Borrowings

Bank loans are included in the financial statements, initialty at far value, net of transaction costs ncurred, which are amortised
over the life of the loan Bank loans are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds, net

of transaction costs, and the redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement over the penod of the borrowing using
the effective interest rate method

Borowings are classified as current labilties unless the Group has an uncondrtional nght to defer settlement of the liabilty
for at least 12 months after the date of the statement of financial position
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1. Accounting policies
Derivative financial instruments

The Group's denvative financial Instruments currently compnse interest rates swaps, which are entered into m order to manage
interest rate nsk from its activities, and embedded foreign exchange forward contracts on development activities All dervative
financial nstrurnents are recorded at fair value based on market prices, estmated future cash flows and quoted forward rates
as appropnate

The Group apphes hedge accounting where the financial Instruments meet the relevant cntena and represent a cash fiow hedge
Changes in farr value of such denvatives that are designated and effective as hedges are recognised directly in reserves,

to be transferred to the Income statement in the pencd dunng which the hedge tem s recognised in the income statement

Any ineffective portion of hedge accounted instruments is recognised immediately Inthe income statement as a finance cost

In all other cases movements in the farr value of demvative financial nstruments are taken to theincome statement Amounts
payable and recenvable under such amangements are included within net finance costs, recognsed on an accruals basis

The farr value of a hedge accounted instrument is classified as a non-current asset or lability when the matunty of the hedged
item s more than 12 months Non-hedging instruments are classified in accordance with ther particular matunty profile

Taxation

The charge for current taxation 15 based on the results for the year as adjusted for tems which are non-taxable or disaliowed
hawving taken into consideration capital allowances, ndexation and avalable tax losses

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the balance shest liability method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases
of assets and habilities and their camying amounts in the consolidated financial statements

Deferred tax s calculated on the basis that properties will be reahsed predominantly through sale and therefore capital gains are
reduced by indexation |

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxabile profit will be available aganst which the
temporary differences can be utiised

Income tax 1s determined using rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial
position date and which are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax lability 1s settled

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other recevables are recognised mitially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectve
interest method A provision for impairment 1s establshed where there is cbjective evdence that the Group will not be able

to collect all amounts due in accordance with the onginal terms of the recevable The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset's carmying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows The provision is recorded in the
income statement

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recogrised inially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest method

Prowvisions for habilities and charges

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it 1s probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been relably estimated

Provisions are measured at the present value, using a pre-tax rate that reflects cument market assessments of the time value
of money and nsks specific to the obligaticns  The Increase in the provision due to the passage of tme is recognised as
interest expense
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Notes to the financial statements

1. Accounting polictes
Share based payment

The Group provides share based payment in the form of share options and share award plans  These plans are discussed

in greater detail in the Remuneration report on pages 38 to 43

Al share based payment arrangements granted after 7 November 2002 that have not vested pnor to 1 January 2005 are
recogised in the financial statements The Group uses, where appropnate, etther a modified binomial or a Monte Carlo valuation
model and the resulting far values, calculated at each award date, are expensed through the income statement over the vesting

penod of the share based payments

The Group revises its estimate of the number of employees expected to remain in senvice o each vestng date and of the
expected satisfaction of any cther non-market performance conditions It recognises the impact of the revision to the onginal

estimates, if any, n the ncorne statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity

The grant by the Company of options and awards in the Group’s equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings

are treated as capial contnbutions

Share capntal

Share capital, which compnses ordinary shares, are classffied as equity Incremental costs attnbutable to the issue of new

subscnphions are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Retirement benefits
Employer contnbutions to schemes of employees are charged to the income statement as incurred

Dividends

Final dwvidend distnbutions to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liabilty in the financial staternents in the penod

in which they are approved Intenm dmdends are recognised when pad
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2. Financial Information
Before
far value Far vauve
ems tems Total
£000 £000 £000
Revenue o 12,458 - 12,458
Property outgoings 6511) - 5,511)
Net property income 6,947 - 6,947
Administrative expenses {7,736, - {7,736}
Exceptional administrative expenses {2,391) - {2,.391)
Total administrative expenses (10,127) - (10,127}
Other ncome 158 - 158
Profit on sale of investment properties 3,894 - 3,894
Profit on sale of owner occupied property 3012 - 3,012
Gain on other financial assets — 3 3
Movement on revaluation of nvestment properties — 107,934 107,934
Operating profit 3,884 107,937 111,821
Finance costs (16,196} (29,436 {(45,632)
Finance ncome 905 2,000 2,905
Net finance costs (15,291) (27,436) (42,727}
(Loss)/profit before taxation for the year endec 30 June 2010 (11,407) 80,501 69,094
Loss before taxation for the year ended 30 June 2009 (6,894) (282,340) (289,234}
Far value tems represent moverments in far value of Investment properties, owner occupied property and denvatwve financal
instruments held by subsidianes
Exceptional administrative expenses relate to costs associated with the KiFin offer and the subsecuent general meeting
3. Revenue and property outgoings
Yoar anded Year ended
30June2010¢  30June2009
£000 £000
Rental ncome 11,870 12,782
Recoverable property expenses 588 750
Revenue 12,458 13,532
Property expenses ncluding property provsions {4,041) 6,977)
Recoverable property expenses (588} {750}
Marketing expenses on properties under development (882) (647}
Property outgoings (5,511} (8,374}
Net property Income 6,947 5,158

The chief operating decision maker has been identfied as the Board of Directors which, following a review of the Group's internal
reporting and the requirements of IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segments’, considers that the Group operates in one business segment

in Great Bntaun and as such no further segmental nformation is required
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Notes 1o the financial statements

3. Revenue and property outgoings
The Group’s minimum lease payments recenvable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

30Mune2010  30Jne 2009
£000 £000
Less than one year 10,645 8,771
Between one and five years T 37,093 27,947
Over five years 110,493 59,647
158,231 96,365
4. Group operating profit/{loss)
Yoar ended ‘Year ended
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
£000 £000
Operating profit/(loss) is stated after charging/(crediting)
Fees payable to Company’s auditors for the audit of Parent Company
and consolidated accounts 60 68
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services
Audt of the Company's subsidianes pursuant to legislation 70 70
Other services pursuant to legslation 37 45
Tax services - -
All other seraces - 15
Depreciation charge ~ o B 147 281
Share based payment 1,283 2,100
Operating lease rentals - land and buldings 677 360
Property provisions (148) 5,631
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment - 94
5. Staff costs
Yaar anded Year encled
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
Average number of employees (including executive Directors) employed by the Group 25 27
£000 £000
Staff costs (including executve Directors)
Wages and salanes 2,716 2,859
Discretionary bonuses 1,220 -
Share based payment 1,283 2,100
Social secunty costs 506 375
Pension costs 133 132
5,858 5,466
Non-executive Directors
Fees 204 250
Social secunty costs 24 28
6,086 5744




67

Minervaplc

Cvernew

Annual report and accounts  Governance

2010 Financial staterments
6. Directors’ remuneration
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 2,202 1,297
Contnbutions to pension schemes of Directors 123 123

Details of Directors' emoluments are set out in the table in the Remuneration report on page 39 In addition to the above,
£666,000 of the share based payment charge for the year 1s attnbutable to the Directors {2009 £1,060,000)

7. Finance costs

Year anded Yaar ended
30June 2010  30June2009
Note £000 £000
Bank interest and charges 52,488 41,198
Amortisation of loan 1ssue costs 2,041 1,410
Far value loss on denvative financial instruments
Movement on non-hedging mstruments 20 23,137 165
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges - 34
Amortisation of cash flow hedge reserve 6,299 -
29,436 199
Interest on obligations under finance leases 152 150
Charges relating to early loan repayment 1,338 -
Capttalised interest and similar charges {39,823) (32,245)
45,632 10,712
8. Finance income
Year ended Year enced
30June2010  30Jume 2009
Note £000 £000
Interest on short-term deposits 735 4,839
Other interest recevable 170 209
Fair value gain on denvative financialinstruments i
Movement on non-hedging nstruments 20 1,920 2,571
Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges 20 80 -
) 2,000 2,571
2,905 7,619
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Notes to the financial statements

9. Taxation

Year ended Year enced

30June 2010 30 .June 2008

Note £000 £000

Corporation tax _ —

Deferred tax credit 23 - (2,178)

Taxation credt for the year - {2,178)

Profit/{loss) before taxation 69,094 (289,234)

Tax on profit/loss) at 28 per cent 19,346 (80,986}
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 920 o

Accelerated capital allowances (2,025) (118)
Differences ansing from taxatton of chargeable gans and property revaluations {32,155) 79,002

Tax losses and other temporary differences 13,914 {1,157)

Taxation credt for the year - (2,178}

10. Loss dealt with by Parent Company

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008, the Company's ncome staterment has not been ncluded in these
financial statements A loss for the year of £38,784,000 (2009 £168,034,000) 1s dealt with in the financial statements of

the Company
11. Eamings/{loss) per share

Eaming/(loss) per share is calculated on a weighted average of 161,174,373 crdinary shares of 25 pence each n1ssue

throughout the year 2008 161,174,373 crdinary shares) and 1s based on profits attnbutable to ordinary shareholders

of £69,114,000 (2008 loss of £287,033,000)

Diluted earmings per share i1s calcutated after allowing for the exercise of employee share options and incentive awards and is

based on 166,980,667 ordinary shares of 25 pence each

Due to the loss in the pnor year, share options and incentive awards did not have a dilutive effect in that year

12. Investment properties

Group wJum% Somne%
At 1 July Net book value 502,395 589,730
Acquisitions - 8,395
Addtions 142,851 188,825
Disposals {26,965) (2,698)
Revaluation movement 107,934 {281,857)
At 30 June Net book value 726,215 502,395
Recognition of finance lease obligations (2,126) (2,129
Amounts Included within prepayments and accrued income 2,661 14,574
At 30 June Atvaluation 726,750 514,840
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12. Investment properties

The investment properties were valued on a market value basis by CB Richard Ellis Limited, independent external valuers,

as at the year-end in accordance with the current edition of the Appraisal and Valuation Stan